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1 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on Wednesday, January 1 A. Allofthem. Theysendyoutoall of them,
2 23,2002, commencing at the hour of 10:05 am., thereof, 2 city government, county government, state government.
3 at theoffices of Morrison & Forester, 400 Capitol Mall, 3 Q After Coro, what did you do?
4 26th Floor, Sacramento, California, before me, 4 A. | wastheexecutive director of the Youth
5 TRACY LEE MOORELAND, a Certified Shorthand Reporter in 5 Againg Proposition 14.
6 the State of California, there personally appeared 6 Q. And then what did you do?
7 JOHN MOCKLER, 7 A. Traveled for about eight months or ten months
8 caled asawitness herein, who, having been duly sworn 8 and came back as administrative assistant to state
9 totdl thetruth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 9 Senator Fred Farr, 1965, about June, | think.
10 truth, was thereupon examined and interrogated as 10 Q. Didyouhave aseriesthen of positions for
11 hereinafter set forth. 11 legidatorsin Sacramento?
12 --000-- 12 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou mean consecutively, isthat
13 EXAMINATION BY MR. JACOBS 13 what you're asking?
14 Q. Good morning, Mr. Mockler. My nameis Michael 14 MR. JACOBS: Yeah.
15 Jacobs. | represent the plaintiffsin this case. 15 THE WITNESS: Wel, | worked for Senator Farr,
16 Y ou've seen the complaint? 16 they reapportioned the senate one man, one vote. | then
17 A Yeah. 17 went back to graduate school at Sacramento State
18 Q. Have you been deposed before? 18 University.
19 A, No 19 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And what did you do --
20 Q.  Neverinyour professional career has your 20 A. | finished my coursework for amaster'sin
21 deposition been taken? 21 economics. Did not get amaster.
22 A. No, | don't believe so. 22 Q. Finished coursawork?
23 Q. The basic ground rules are that | ask the 23 A. Y eah.
24 questions, you give the answers, the reporter takes them 24 Q. Then what?
25 down. That imposes a certain disciplineon us. | have 25 A. Then | went to work for the assembly office of
Page 7 Page 9
1 tocomplete my question in order to allow you to answer 1 researchin about January of 68.
2 it, and then you have to finish your question -- finish 2 Q. Howlongdidyouwork there?
3 your answer before | can do the next question. The 3 A.  About five months, four months. Andthen|
4 reporter takes the transcript down. We can use that for 4 went to work for the governmenta efficiency and economy
5 certain purposesin the litigation. 5 committee for about six months.
6 Do you understand al that? 6 Q. Thenwhat?
7 A, Yes 7 A. Thenl went towork for the assembly education
8 Q. If youdon't understand my question, please ask 8 committee for two years.
9 metodarifyit. That may engender alittle dialogue 9 Q. Youwereonthecommittee staff as opposed --
10 between us about what needs clarification, but it's 10 A.  Committee staff.
11 important that the question and answer be clear on the 11 Q. --asopposedtoanindividud legidator or
12 record so that ther€'s not a dispute later on about what 12 saff?
13 | meant and what you meant. Okay? 13 A.  Committee staff, yes.
14 A, Yes 14 Q. Sothat bringsusto what year?
15 Q. Yougraduated collegein? 15 A. 1971, January, when | went to work for the
16 A. 1963 16 assembly ways and means committee as a consultant.
17 Q. Fromtherewhat did you do? 17 Q. How longdidyou do that?
18 A. IwonaCoro Foundation Fellowship for the year 18 A. Three-and-a-haf years.
19 of '63, '64. 19 Q. Andthen?
20 Q. Andwasthat in an educationa context? 20 A. | wenttowork for the State Department of
21 A. No,it'sapublic policy programin a number of 21 Education, went to work for Wilson Riles, superintendent
22 cities. | wasin San Francisco. 22 of publicinstruction.
23 Q. Incity government? 23 Q. What wasyour positionin the DOE?
24 A. City, state politics. Coro Foundation -- 24 A.  Chief office of government affairs, whichis
25 Q. |know Coro. But your particular assgnment? 25 sort of alobbyist, and later manager of the school
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1 finance equalization project. We did school finance 1 MR. VIRJEE: Also assumesfactsnotin
2 modeling for implementation of Serrano. 2 evidence
3 Q. Andthat brings ustowhat year? 3 THE WITNESS: Principa?
4 A. 1977. Went to work as the director of the 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Meaning what was your title
5 independent analysis unit, Los Angeles Board of 5 @ -- in Strategic Education Services?
6 Education until about, | think, December of 80. 6 A. Predden.
7 Q. Thenwhat? 7 Q. Wasthere-- and you did lobbying on behalf of
8 A. '81,'821 created and operated abusinessin 8 dlients, correct?
9 which| did consulting and government advocacy. 9 A Yes
10 Q. WasthatinLosAngeles? 10 Q. Andwereyou aregistered lobbyist?
11 A.  InSacramento. 11 A, Yes
12 Q. Soyoumoved back here? 12 Q. Werethereany other registered lobbyists at
13 A. Right. 13 Strategic Education Services?
14 Q. Andwhenyou did thejob with the independent 14 A, Yes
15 analysis unit, was your job located, in Los Angeles? 15 Q. How many?
16 A. Yes Yes 16 A. One
17 Q  '82? 17 Q. At Strategic Education Serviceswere dl of
18 A. '8land'821 didthe business, and thenin'83 18 your engagements education focused?
19 | went to work for the speaker of the assembly, ‘82 and 19 A. Engagements?
20 '83 20 Q Meaning on behalf of clients.
21 (Mr. Jordan entered the room.) 21 A. No.
22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wasthat WillieBrownbythen? | 22 Q.  You had some noneducation responsibilities?
23 A. ltwasindeed. 23 A Yes.
24 Q. How long did youwork for him? 24 Q How long did -- is Strategic Education Services
25 A.  Fromthat gtint, two years. Ways and meanswas 25 inexistencetoday as an entity?
Page 11 Page 13
1 three-and-a-half years-- 1 A Yes
2 MR. VIRJEE: Answer his questions. 2 Q. Issomebody eserunningit?
3 Q BY MR. JACOBS: Next? 3 A | soldit.
4 A. Thenl went back to the business | had formed. 4 Q. |see. Andwhenwasthat?
5 Q. Didyouusethesamenamein'83,'84--1'm 5 A. |bdieve1998. Could have been late 1997.
6 sorry, after '83, '84 when you went back to the 6 Q. Anddidyou disengage entirely after you sold
7 business-- 7 it?
8 What was the name of your businessin '81, '82? 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
9 A. Murdoch, Mockler & Associates, M-u-r-d-o-c-h. 9 to"disengage entirely." Y ou mean from the work force
10 Q. Andwhat wasthe name of the businessin the 10 of the Strategic Education Services?
11 period after you worked for the speaker '83, '84? 11 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
12 A.  Murdoch, Mockler & Associates. 12 THEWITNESS: Yes.
13 Q. Andhow long did you remain in that capacity? 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andin 1990 -- let me start
14 A.  Until, | believe, 1991. 14 over.
15 Q. Whatdidyoudoin1991? 15 Did you do that in order to take a position
16 A. Formed acompany caled Strategic Education 16 with state government?
17 Services. 17 A No.
18 Q. Andwasthemission of Strategic Education 18 Q. Didyou take aposition with state government
19 Services similar to your mission with Murdoch, Mockler? 19 shortly thereafter?
20 A.  Yes, Murdoch Mockler divided up. 20 A. No.
21 Q. Andhow long did you -- were you the only 21 Q. What didyou do after you sold it?
22 principa at Strategic Education Services? 22 A. | hadJohn Mockler & Associates, and |
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 23 consulted and did not lobby.
24 to"principa." 24 Q. Wereyour clients educational entities?
25 THE WITNESS: Principa? 25 A Mostly.
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Q.  What wasthe next milestone?
A. | wasappointed executive director of the State
Board of Education, | think, November of '99.
Q.  Andthen a some point you became acting
secretary of education; is that correct?
A.  Interim secretary.
Q. Andwhenwasthat?
A.  August 19 -- 2000.
Q. And did that mean that you gave up your
position as executive director?
A. Yes
Q.  Asinterim secretary, did you hold any other
positions in state government?
A. No.
MR. VIRJEE: Concurrently you mean?
MR. JACOBS: Yes.
THEWITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou went back to the State
Board a some point; is that correct?
A. Yes
Q. Andwhenwasthat?
A.  February, | believe, 2000.
Q. Andthat'syour position today; isthat
correct?
A.  That'scorrect.
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THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Which part don't you
understand?

A. Repedtitagain.
(Record read.)

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Which one,
the aims or the resolution? Vague and ambiguous. Cdls
for speculation. Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor alegd
conclusion.

THE WITNESS: What do you mean by "aims'?

MR. JACOBS: Godls.

MR. VIRJEE: Same objection asto "gods." And
same objection asto the previous question. Also calls
for complete speculation as to what the goals may have
been of the court in the case.

MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to whose
goals are being inquired about.

THE WITNESS: What do you mean by "aim" and
"gods'?

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let meask it another way so we
can figure out how to get started here.

Y ou have commented on the Serrano litigation
over time, correct?

A. Yes
Q. Youwrote an article about it, about the
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Q. | wanttotdk with you first about finance
issues, and | want to approach it from the standpoint of
where Serrano left off. And you wrote an article about
Serranoin 1978, and if it would help to refresh your
recollection, | could show you that. We haven't run
that off, so let's not do that then.

Serrano aimed to squeeze out of the educationa
finance system wedl th-based disparities, would you agree
with that proposition?

A. No.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "squeeze out."

Before you answer the questions, give the
lawyers a chance to object, and then you can go ahead
and answer.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How would you characterize the
aims of the Serrano -- the resolution of Serrano?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation asto "aims." Also callsfor alega
conclusion which this witness is not competent to give.

MR. SEFERIAN: Counsdl, can we stipulate that
objections asserted by defense counsdl are also asserted
by other defense counsel?

MR.JACOBS: Yes.

MR. SEFERIAN: Thank you.
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Serrano casein 1978 and what it all meant?

MR. VIRJEE: If you recall.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Youdon't remember that?
That's okay if you dontt.
A. Theesanarticlel wrotein 1978.
Q. Andit'sabout Serrano, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "about Serrano.”
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It'scalled Schoal Finance
After Serrano. Does that refresh your recollection?
A.  Yes, it'sabout school finance.
Q. Andit'sabout schoal financein the wake of
the Serrano litigation, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "wake." | guess the document also speaks for itsdlf,
the article.

THE WITNESS: | wrote an article in 1978 about
schooal finance.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Couldyou answer my question?
A.  What question?

(Record read.)

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The document, article
speaks for itself asto what it's about.

THE WITNESS: It's about school finance as
implemented by the legidature.

5 (Pages 14 to 17)




PEBoo~N~onswNE

NNNNNRNNRE R R R R R
ORWONRPROOONOUDWN

Page 18

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inthewake of the Serrano
litigation, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "wake of Serrano litigation." Callsfor speculation.
Also to the extent you're asking is it about the effects
of Serrano, callsfor alega conclusion which this
witnessis not competent to give. The document speaks
for itself.

THE WITNESS: What do | do now?

MR. JACOBS: Answer.

MR. VIRJEE: If you can. | think he hastwice.

THEWITNESS: | wrote an article about
implementation by the legidature, the legidature
response and what they did about school finance.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What they did in responseto
what, sir?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence.

THE WITNESS: Thelegidature passed a piece of
legidation AB 65.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inresponseto nothing?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: They passed school finance bills
al thetime.
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MR. JACOBS: Let's mark as Exhibit 233 a
reprint of an article from the Journal of Education of
Finance, spring 1978, School Financein Cdifornia
Pre-Serrano to the Present, John Mockler and Gerald
Hayward.

Q. Doesthisrefresh your recollection of the
article?
A. | knowthearticle.

MR. VIRJEE: That cdls for speculation that
his recollection needed to be refreshed. | don't think
there was any indication that it needed to be refreshed.

(Exhibit SAD-233 was marked.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Couldyou look a the bottom of
page 386 and the top of page 387, please.
A. Yes
Q.  Could you put in your own words, in an ora
context, if you will, what you were describing in the
part of the article that starts, in the 1970, '71 fisca
year, and then goes on to describe ranges?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Assumesthat he put thisinto writing.
Theré's two different authors. That lacks foundation.

MR. SEFERIAN: Document speaks for itself.

THE WITNESS: The table shows the highs and
lows of assessed evaluation per ADA, and the highs and
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. You understand that you're
under oath, sir?

A.  Yes

Q.  Andyou understand that thisisapublic --

MR. VIRJEE: Well dtipulate he understands
he's under oath. 'Y ou don't need to badger him and tell
himwhat his obligations are. He's under oath, he's
answering your gquestions as best he can.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Y ou understand that this
transcript is ameatter of public record?

A. Yes

Q. Sowhat wasyour 1978 article about in
reference to Serrano?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered
three times.

Y ou can answer it one moretime. 'Y ou don't
have to answer it again. Y ou can answer it the same
way.

MR. JACOBS: I'll give you a copy of the
article, air.

THE WITNESS: Right.

MR. VIRJEE: Let the record reflect also that
the title has been misguoted.

Are you going to hand a copy to me, Counsd,
please?
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lows of tax rates and expenditures.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Andwhat wereyou --

THE WITNESS: Asof 1970, '71.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andby"ADA," you mean average
daily attendance?

A.  Yes, the students attending each day.

Q. Andonthetop of page 387 you've trandated

the effect of tax rate and assessed valuation and ADA

into adollar amount per ADA, right?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Document speaks for
itself. Vague and ambiguous asto "trandated.” Cdls
for speculation. Lacks foundation that he did anything.

THE WITNESS: The article explains what afew
districts raised with a particular tax rate.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andwhat theyraisedona
dollar amount per student, correct?

A.  Correct, with property taxes.

Q. AndAB 65 wasthe legidation that was passed
that you were referring to earlier in your answers?

A. Yes | bdievethat'strue, yes.

Q. AndAB 65 wasaimed, in part, at reducing the
differences in expenditures per ADA among school
digtricts, correct?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Cdlsfor speculation asto whoseaim. Lacks
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1 foundation. Callsfor aninadmissible legd opinion. 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
2 THE WITNESS: AB 65 capped revenues of school 2 THE WITNESS: The bill capped expenditures for
3 didrictsas one of its -- more so than they'd be capped 3 somedidgtricts, increased expenditures for other
4  previoudly. 4 districts, and reduced expenditure -- proposed to reduce
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By capping revenue per school 5 expenditure variations over time.
6 digrict, what do you mean? 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you say "proposed,” was
7 A. | mean by statute you may not spend more than 7 that part not enacted? Why do you say "proposed'?
8 that cap. 8 A. Itwasenacted and immediately made
9 Q. What wasthe purpose of capping the 9 unenforceable because of Proposition 13.
10 expenditures -- capping the revenue per school district 10 Q. Haveyou participated in any other initiatives
11 asyou described? 11 toachieve more equd funding per ADA across the state?
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 to"purpose. Cdlsfor speculation. And lacks 13 to"participated" and "initiatives’ and "equal funding."
14 foundation asto whose purpose. If you're asking what 14 THE WITNESS: If you can explain initiatives
15 thelegidature's purpose was, clearly it calls for 15 and participate.
16 gpeculation. Also cdlsfor alegal conclusion. 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Whichword first?
17 THE WITNESS: AB 65 capped revenues so that 17 A. Okay. Initiatives.
18 digtricts would have more equa funding per student -- 18 Q. Initiatives. Sowhy don't we confineit to
19 per ADA, not per student. 19 proposed legidation in which you played arole in the
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyouwork on AB 65? 20 formulation.
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 to"work on." 22 to'"playedarole
23 THE WITNESS: | was employed initialy by the 23 THE WITNESS: | have had many opportunitiesto
24  State Department of Education when AB 65 wasdeveloped. | 24 comment on legislation regarding financing of public
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyour unit was-- played a 25 schoals.
Page 23 Page 25
1 roleintheformulation of AB 65? 1 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andsome of which were aimed at
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 2 greater equality in funding per ADA?
3 asto'role" 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
4 MR. VIRJEE: And "formulation.” 4 Vague asto time, and vague and ambiguous as to more
5 THE WITNESS: We reviewed the provisions of 5 equal funding.
6 ABG65. 6 THE WITNESS: There are severd pieces of
7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. And commented onthem? 7 legidation that reduced property tax wealth-related
8 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou asking if Mr. Mockler or 8 disparities, if that's what you mean. 'Y ou mean equal
9 the Department commented on them? 9 funding or you mean equa property taxes?
10 THE WITNESS: | commented on behalf of the 10 MR. JACOBS: The former.
11 superintendent of the Board. 11 THE WITNESS: Equal funding?
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Werethere any other 12 MR. JACOBS: Uh-huh.
13 expenditure -- strike that. 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 Were there any other provisions of AB 65 that 14 to"equal funding".
15 amed at more equal funding per ADA? 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Maybe we can work backwards so
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 16 we can start with something that's recent rather than by
17 astoaim. Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation. 17 now historical.
18 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovagueastotime. 18 What are the most recent comments that you have
19 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible legd 19 provided relating to the legidlation about equality of
20 opinion. 20 funding?
21 THE WITNESS: What do you mean by am? 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 MR. JACOBS: In the same sense that you refer 22 to "equality of funding,” and also vague and ambiguous
23 tothe provision on capping revenues as having an impact 23 asto“comments.”
24 onmore equal funding per ADA or having an intended 24 THE WITNESS: Do you mean equal dollars per
25 impact on more equa funding. 25 student when you mean equal funding?
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1 Q BY MR JACOBS: How didyou meanit whenyou 1 Cdlisfor an expert opinion which this witness may or
2 referedtoit earlier? 2 may not be competent to give. Cdlsfor alegd
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 3 conclusion.
4 evidence. | don't know that he did refer to it earlier. 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper
5 THE WITNESS: Asaconsultant | have worked on 5 hypothetical question.
6 severa pieces of legidation that dealt with that 6 THE WITNESS: I'mtrying to get away to answer
7 issue ‘ 7 that question. Theissue of equa dollars per ADA isa
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What'sthe most recent? 8 simplistic notion of school funding and it has two
9 A. SB813,1983, but there have been severd 9 sides, so I've participated in discussions about this,
10 smaler actions subsequent, including legidation as 10 but research, | don't know.
11 lateaslast year. 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you say "two sides," what
12 Q. Inthecaseof last year'slegidation, what 12 doyou mean?
13 areyoureferring to? 13 A. | meanthat wedlth -- solving wealth-related
14 A. Proposasby someto give more money to school 14 disparities, reduced funding for low-income children,
15 digtricts who had lower excused absence rates. 15 while producing a more narrow band of expenditures based
16 Q. Movingbackwardsintime from that one, what's 16 onanoctionthat ADA and property wealth are ameasure
17 the next most recent piece of legisiation on which you 17 of wedth.
18 commented? 18 Q. Whydidthat occur?
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an
20 tocomment. Before he wastalking about consulting. 20 inadmissiblelega opinion.
21 Vague and ambiguous as to comments. 21 MR. VIRJEE: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor
22 THE WITNESS: | can't remember particular bill 22 speculation. Cadlsfor alega conclusion. Also vague
23 numbers between there, but there have been several, over 23 and ambiguous asto "that."
24  time, proposalsto provide the same dollars per ADA to 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Lacks foundation.
25 school didtricts. 25 THE WITNESS: Y ou want my opinion about that?
Page 27 Page 29
1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Haveyou provided input into 1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Youve offered your opinion on
2 any dtudies, let'slimit it to the last five years, 2 that before, correct?
3 about school financein California? 3 A.  Yes myopinionistha the notion was
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 smplistic because wedlth defined by property -- wedlth
5 to"studies," "input" and "school finance." 5 isnot agood measure of ability to pay, nor isit
6 THE WITNESS: By "studies' do you mean 6 related to the income of the citizens.
7 research, do you mean -- | don't -- 7 Q. Andwhydidthat result in reduced funding for
8 MR. JACOBS: | mean it broadly, something that 8 low-income students?
9 resulted in apaper on schoal finance. 9 MR. VIRJEE: Why did what result in low-income
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 10 students?
11 asto"dudies' and "paper.” 11 MR. JACOBS: | think it'sclear.
12 THEWITNESS: | talk about -- alot about 12 MR. VIRJEE: | dontthink it'sclear. It's
13 schoal finance. | don't know if talking is 13 vague and ambiguous.
14 participating. | certainly wouldn't call it research. 14 MR. JACOBS: What you just testified to.
15 | don't recall aparticular study in the last five 15 MR. VIRJEE: Hedidn't say it did, so that
16 years. 16 assumesfactsnot in evidence.
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doyouhaveabasisinyour 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
18 knowledge or experience for answering the following 18 asto"that." Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an
19 question: Towhat degree are there disparitiesin 19 inadmissible opinion.
20 funding per ADA among the school districtsin the state 20 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou can answer the question if you
21 of Cdiforniain the period beginning 2000, ending 21 understand it.
22 today? 22 THE WITNESS: Wsll, | -- do you want -- what
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 23 areyou looking for?

NN
(G2

to "disparities,” and calls for speculation asto
whether he has abasis of knowledge or experience.

NN
(G2 N

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mlooking for youtotieit
up. Yousaidinyour earlier answer that one of the
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effects of solving wealth-related disparities was
reduced funding for low-income students, and then |
asked you why that occurred and you commented on the
relationship between wedth-related disparities and the
ability to pay or theincome of the relevant payers, and
so my question is, can you tie those two together?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates his
testimony.

MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor aninadmissible
opinion. Lacksfoundation. Incomplete and improper
hypothetical question.

THE WITNESS: A large number of low-income
children lived in, live in high wealth school digtricts,
high property wealth school digtricts.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andsoto try and movethis
along, your view is that because low-income children
livein high property wealth school districts, by
focusing on high-property wedth as the source of
disparity, in fact, it reduced the funding available to
low-income students;, is that right?
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system that we have in the year 2002 has evolved
considerably from the system that was the immediate
output of AB 65, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "system’".

Y ou're talking about the system for funding
schoal districts?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

THEWITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andwith referenceto wedth
related -- that is because you're focusing on the aspect
of AB 65 that relates to equalizing?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Calls--
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthat why you say no?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cadllsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

THE WITNESS: AB 65 has many parts. The
current system looks very much like that.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why do you say that?
A.  That'smy opinion.

21 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cadllsfor an 21 Q. Andwhat'sthebasisfor it?
22 inadmissible opinion. Lacksfoundation. Incomplete 22 A. AB 65 addresses revenue limit, equalization,
23 hypothetical question. Vague and ambiguous as to focus, 23 and categorical funds, and our current system addresses
24 "source" and "disparity." 24 equdlization and categorica funds.
25 MR. VIRJEE: Also compound question. Assumesa 25 Q. Sothewaywegot started on thisis| asked
Page 31 Page 33
1 blanket rule. 1 you, asyou look at the system covering the last severa
2 THE WITNESS: That's my thought. 2 years, did you have abasis for commenting on the
3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | think we started down this 3 sourcesof -- | think | asked you --
4 path because you said there were two sides to the issue, 4 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou never got there.
5 and| asked you what were those two sides. | think 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Let'sdtartitagain. Looking
6 sideswastheword you used. Isthat both of the sides 6 at the system for the last three years, in terms of
7 or oneof the sides? 7 inegquality among expenditures per ADA in the school
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 8 didricts of the state, what is the explanation today
9 MR. VIRJEE: Assumes facts not in evidence. 9 for that inequality?
10 Assumesit'seither one. 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
11 THE WITNESS: My reference to two sideswas 11 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "inequality” and
12 that reducing property wealth related disparities became 12 “expenditures." Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an
13 an objective of many people. 13 inadmissible opinion.
14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asopposedtoequalizing 14 THE WITNESS: | have only generd knowledge
15 funding at the end of the application of the formula 15 regarding expenditure variations among districts.
16 that resulted from that effort? 16 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andthat generd knowledgeis
17 A.  Yes 17 what?
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 18 A. Baserevenuelimit equity, depending on how you
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Soaswelook at -- the system 19 measureit, isfairly equal with some outliers.
20 that we havein the year 2002, it has evolved 20 MR. JACOBS: Canyou just read back the answer.
21 considerably beyond AB 65, correct? 21 (Record read.)
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What doyou mean by basic
23 asto "evolved" and "considerably.” Incomplete 23 revenue limit equity?
24 hypothetical question. 24 A.  Equa dollars per student by size and type of
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let mebreak that down. The 25 school digtrict in the base revenue limit system.
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1 Q. Bytypeof school district, what are you 1 revenuelimit?

2 referringto? 2 MR. VIRJEE: Baserevenuelimit.

3 A. Highschoal, unified, dementary, large, smdll. 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou say baseor basic?

4 Q. Soissizea--bythat didyoumeantowrapin 4 A. Bese

5 the size component also, or is size used in a different 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous

6 way? 6 asto "expenditures.”

7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 7 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovague and anbiguous asto

8 THE WITNESS: Sizerefersto the number of 8 "components."

9 studentsinthedistrict. 9 THE WITNESS: Do you mean revenues, or do you
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andtheoutliersyou were 10 mean expenditures?

11 referring to, how would you describe them? 11 MR. JACOBS:. Revenues.

12 MR. VIRJEE: Other than what he's aready said? 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Vague

13 THE WITNESS: A few digtricts with high 13 and ambiguous asto "revenues."

14 revenues per student. 14 THE WITNESS: Various categorica support,

15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sothose--theoutliersyou 15 date and federd.

16 arethinking of are afew districts -- 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Arethereany others?

17 MR. VIRJEE: Did youwant himto finish his 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.

18 answer before you interrupt him? 18 Lacksfoundation. Compound.

19 THE WITNESS: Few digtricts with high revenues 19 THE WITNESS: There are others.

20 and revenues per student. 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What arethey?

21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have anunderstanding of | 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection --

22  what those districts are? 22 THEWITNESS: | don't know them al offhand.

23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 23 Locd-voted bonds, local-levied fees, including how much

24 Lacksfoundation. 24 you charge for lunch, grants.

25 THE WITNESS: Vague. Y ou want to know can | 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By "local-voted bonds," are you
Page 35 Page 37

1 namethedigtricts? 1 referring, in part, to construction-related bonds?

2 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as

3 THE WITNESS: Can | name some of them? 3 to"congtruction-related bonds' and "in part." Also

4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Canyou name some of them? 4 compound as to which district you're talking about.

5 A. | shouldntdo that. 5 THE WITNESS: Locd didtricts have the ability

6 MR. VIRJEE: Let the record reflect we were al 6 tovotefor local bonds for facilities.

7 laughing. 7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisthereany other

8 THE WITNESS: Pao Alto, Kern digtricts, Reed. 8 subcategories within your category local-voted bonds?

9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: ReedinMarin County? 9 MR. VIRJEE: Any other subcategory? Objection.
10 A. Right. I can't recall any more. 10 Vague and ambiguous asto subcategory. He has not set
11 Q. Andwhatisthe-- what isyour understanding 11 forth asubcategory.

12 of how the system that you've described allows for these 12 THE WITNESS: All bonds are for facilities.

13 outliers? 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou commented recently
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. That callsfor an 14 on-- I'masking you thisreally to try and get a

15 inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto 15 vocabulary down between us.

16 "dlows." Lacksfoundation. Incomplete and improper 16 Have you spoken recently about the topic of

17 hypothetica question. 17 totd per student expendituresin the state of

18 MR. VIRJEE: And callsfor speculation. 18 Cdifornia?

19 THE WITNESS: Are you saying why do they exist? 19 MR. SEFERIAN: [I'll object to the extent it

20 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 20 cdlsfor information protected by the deliberative

21 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 21 process and officia information privileges. Vague and
22 THE WITNESS: Historic circumstances of revenue 22 ambiguous.

23 limit calculations and excess property taxes. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "total

24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What arethe other components 24 per student expenditures,” and also vague and ambiguous
25 of school district expenditures besides basic (sic) 25 asto "spoken.”
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1 THE WITNESS: What do you mean by the question? 1 What's vague about the question?

2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inyour 1978 paper you talked 2 THE WITNESS: I'm unaware of whether you mean

3 about raising 719 per ADA, for example, on page 387, and 3 4l expenditures, state and local tax expenditures.

4 now people talk about average per student expenditures 4 Youll haveto clarify that.

5 inthe state of Cdiforniainthe5, 6, $7,000 range. 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What I'm asking you iswhat are

6 I'm asking you whether you have discussed the 6 thevarious ways to describe the phenomenon of

7 topic recently of average per student expenditures with 7 expenditures per student?

8 that asbackground? 8 MR. VIRJEE: That's a different question.

9 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the question to the 9 Q. BY MR JACOBS: When you've publicaly spoken
10 extentit cdlsfor information protected by officia 10 onit, which of those categories do you use?

11 information, deliberative process privileges. 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Which
12 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto 12 question do you want him to answer now? Those are two
13 spoken. 13 new questions different than your last question.
14 THE WITNESS: Do you mean have | publicaly 14 Be careful what question you answer because he
15 talked about how much money we spend in Cdifornia? 15 told you when you answer his questions, he's going to
16 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 16 assume you understood the question and that your answer
17 THE WITNESS: Y ou should have asked. 17 isresponsive. Make sure you know which question you're
18 MR. JACOBS: He can't object to your question, 18 answering.
19 soit'sfineif you ask your own. Y ou know whereI'm 19 THE WITNESS: Would you repest the question,
20 going. 20 plesse.
21 THE WITNESS: In generd | review expenditures 21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you spesk publically about
22 and revenues of public schools, in ageneral case. 22 the generd topic of expenditures per student in the
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andwhat isyour -- what are 23 date of Caifornia, which measures of expenditures per
24 theterms you use to describe those revenues and 24 student do you use for that purpose?
25 expenditures? Do you talk about revenue per ADA? How 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation
Page 39 Page 41

1 doyou discussthat topic? 1 andlacksfoundation. Compound as opposed -- and

2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 2 assumesfactsnot in evidence. Assumesheusesasingle

3 evidence. It assumes he discussesthetopic. Also 3 measurefor dl time when he speaks publicaly about it

4 compound. Depends on the context of the situation. 4 eachtime.

5 Vagueand ambiguous. Callsfor speculation, and lacks 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.

6 foundation. 6 THE WITNESS: Y ou'd haveto get to somewhere

7 THE WITNESS: All of those. 7 | -- 1 speak of revenues per enrolled student, revenues

8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: All of what? 8 per ADA, state and local revenues, Prop 98 revenues.

9 A. Youaskedif | commented on per student, per 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou spoken, say, inthe
10 ADA. | have conversations with people al thetime 10 last five years about what you believe the best measure
11 about thingslike that. 11 isof expenditures per student if oneistrying to
12 Q. Andwhat -- sotake asimple question, what 12 determinethetotal resourcesthat are being allocated
13 is-- what might seem like asimple question. What are 13 to public education in the state?

14 Cdifornids current expenditures per student in the 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
15 public school system? 15 to"totd resources’ and "best measure."

16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 16 THEWITNESS: Yes.

17 to"Cdifornia" "current” and "expenditures per 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What have you said on that
18 student.” 18 topic?

19 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor 19 MR. SEFERIAN: [I'll object to the extent it

20 speculation. Cdlsfor an inadmissible opinion. 20 calsfor privileged communications. Callsfor an

21 Incomplete and hypothetical question. 21 inadmissible opinion. Lacksfoundation. Cdls for

22 THE WITNESS: Y ou'd have to explain what you 22 speculdion.

23 wishthere. Do youwish -- 23 THE WITNESS: Five years, must have spoken of
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Y ou've answered the question, 24 many, many things. Which time period or what -- what's
25 Mr. Mockler. 25 the specific?
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asyou sit heretoday, what is
your opinion as to the best metric for that purpose?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "best metric for that purpose.”" Compound. Callsfor
speculation as to which particular situation might occur
and require which metric.

MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper
hypothetical question. Callsfor aninadmissible
opinion.

THE WITNESS: Thereisno-- in my opinion,
thereisno best. There's severa indicators.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. And theindicators are the ones
that you listed afew minutes ago?

A. Andothers.

Q.  What otherswould you point to?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "point to." Vague
as to context.

THE WITNESS: Income per student.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Meaning family income?
A.  Maeaning family income.

Q. Anyothers?

A. | cantrecal al of them now, but there are
severd.

Q. Yourefamiliar with articlesin the press that

PEBoo~ooswNE
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Lacks foundation as to what would be the best measure,
and also cdls for expert testimony.

MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
"reliable measure” and "ranks." Incomplete and improper
hypothetical question.

THEWITNESS: | know of no reliable data on the
subject.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Now, you yoursdf have
commented both in the 1978 article and recently on
expenditures in education as a function of some figure
that is a-- that you viewed asreliable, a proxy for

totdl stateincome. | can't remember what that was. We
could find it.

Do you know what I'm referring to?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor
speculation.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I recdl it's something dong
the lines of having dropped from 5.9 percent to 3.7
percent in the last 30-plus years.

Does that refresh --

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague asto context.
Overly broad.

THE WITNESS: Oneindicator is percent of
personal income allocated to public schoals.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andinthepart of that
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say that Californias ranked in a certain position in
terms of average expenditures per student on public
education, yes?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also assumes facts not in evidence.

| guess he's asking if you've ever seen such an
article.

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andtypicaly Cdiforniais
ranked in relatively low paositionsin those rankings,
yes?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "relatively” and "low." Also vague and ambiguous as
to time as to when the ranking was occurring.

MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
"typicaly." Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: Avticles have expressed it
numerous ways, some articles suggest low ranking, some
articles suggest higher ranking.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddo you have an opinion as
to what the most reliable measureisin order to

determine the question how California ranks as against
other states in expenditures per pupil?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "expenditures per student." Calls for speculation.
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function that is allocated to public schools --

MR. VIRJEE: "Tha" function?

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: -- what isthe-- what are you
including in your cd culation of what's been dlocated
to public schools?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
and calls for speculation, and in what context.

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THE WITNESS: Explain what you mean. What goes
into what?

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I think | understand what
percent -- what the personal incomeisin that function.
I'm trying to unpack what you mean by "dlocated to
public schools' or "public education.”

A.  Thenumerator is expenditures by public
schooals, the denominator istotal persond income of the
state.

Q. And by "expenditures by public schoals," when
you've run that calculation, isthere a source you go to
to determine what you mean by expenditures per public
schools?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Assumesthat he runs that calculation or that
there is any one single source that he goes to.

THE WITNESS: There are severa sources, ways
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1 tomakethat calculation. 1 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thefocusof thearticle here
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What haveyourdiedonin 2 isontextbooks. Did you mean to disclaimin your
3 compiling that caculation of -- 3 answer textbooksin particular?
4 A. Nationa Center for Education Statistics and 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Argumenttive.
5 theNEA, Nationa Education Association. 5 MR. VIRJEE: Also assumesfactsnotin
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Would this be agood time for a 6 evidence. Assumesthat when he had the conversation
7  bresk? ‘ 7 with thisreporter, if he had one, that the focus of
8 MR. JACOBS:. Yep. 8 ther discussion was textbooks.
9 (Recess taken.) 9 MR. SEFERIAN: Also assumes he knew the focus
10 MR. JACOBS: I'dliketo mark asthenextin 10 of the article at the time he was commenting.
11 order an article from the Los Angeles Times dated May 11 THE WITNESS: Textbooks, broadly defined, means
12 11th, 1998. 12 accesstoinstructional resources. It could be abook,
13 (Exhibit SAD-234 was marked.) 13 could be many different things, could be paper, could be
14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisisanarticleabout a 14 pencils, could be audio, video, could be -- but students
15 survey that was conducted by the American Association of 15 need the stuff of education provided them in some form.
16 Publishers. Do you seethat? 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by you're not going to get
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Do you want himto read the 17 where you want to go, did you mean achieving educationa
18 article? Arewegoing to give himtimeto read the 18 outcomes that were desired?
19 article? 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sir? 20 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "outcomes." Vague
21 A. Yesh | seethearticle 21 astocontext. Assumes facts notin evidence.
22 Q. Youarequoted there as saying, Californians 22 THE WITNESS: The question was about the poll.
23 common sense tells them you're not going to get where 23 Theanswer isthat the public beievesthat student must
24 youwant to go if kids don't have the basic stuff of 24 have stuff of education, and | was commenting that their
25 educetion, said John Mockler, a consultant to the 25 ingtincts are correct. Textbooksisin abroad context.
Page 47 Page 49
1 publishers group. Do you seethat? 1 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Their instincts are correct in
2 A Yes 2 that they believe they need the stuff of education in
3 Q. Do you recall having discussions around this 3 order to achieve desired educational outcomes?
4 time about the topic that you were -- that you reported 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
5 ashaving commented onin this article? 5 evidence
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 6 MR. JACOBS: I'm going to call up the
7 to"topic," "reported as having commented on." Does he 7 commissioner now and I'm going to get on the phone
8 remember making this statement? 8 unlessthis harassment stops. Thisis absolutely out of
9 THE WITNESS: Something like that. 9 control.
10 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: What did you mean when you were 10 MR. VIRJEE: Let's go ahead and stop and let
11 referring to, first of al, "the basic stuff of 11 you call the commissioner then. That's fine.
12 education"? 12 MR. JACOBS: That transparently doesn't call
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not in 13 for an objection. Theway it's framed, it doesn't draw
14 evidence. Callsfor speculation. Vague as to context. 14 anobjection.
15 THE WITNESS: Students in this context needed 15 MR. VIRJEE: Well, | joinin his objection.
16 instructional resources. 16 MR. JACOBS. We're going to take this
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by "ingtructional 17 transcript and we're going to go to the judge with it
18 resources," what did you mean? 18 andweregoing to put it on awebsite and it will --
19 MR. VIRJEE: What does he mean now, because 19 those are absurd objections.
20 those words aren't used. 20 MR. VIRJEE: Either ask questions or adjourn
21 MR. JACOBS: Fair enough. 21 thedeposition.
22 Q.  What do you mean now? 22 MR. JACOBS: I'm going to temporarily adjourn
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague asto context. 23 the deposition and see if we can reach the commissioner.
24 THE WITNESS: Achievement, awide variety of 24 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not going to participate on a
25 papers, pencils, instructional resources of al kinds. 25 conference call with the commissioner if that's what
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you're suggesting. Y ou ask your deposition questions or
you adjourn the deposition and well come back after you
talk to the commissioner some other time.

MR. JACOBS: I'mgoing to do an ex parte with
the commissioner.

MR. VIRJEE: I'm not going to participatein
any ex parte with the commissioner. Ask your gquestions.
He can make his objections for therecord. They are
reasonable objections. | disagree with you.

MR. JACOBS: So if we adjourn temporarily to
get the commissioner on the phone, you are stating the
position of the State of Californiathat it will not
participate in that telephone conference with the
discovery commissioner?

MR. VIRJEE: Y ou can adjourn the deposition and
you can make a motion, you can do whatever you need to
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Back to 234, again,
Mr. Mockler.
A.  Okay, the pressrelease.
Q. Atthetimeyou commentedinthisarticle, were
you a consultant to the American Association of
Publishers?
A.  Yes andalobbyist.
Q. Didyou have any information at the time about
what the cost per student of an adequate level of
textbooks or instructional materials was?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "cost per student" and "adequate level "
THEWITNESS: That'sawhile back, but as|
recdll, it's about 60 bucks a kid we're talking about.
Q. BY MR JACOBS: Peryear?
A.  Peryear, every year.

17 do but we're here for adeposition. If you're going to 17 Q. Andwasthat acrossK through 12, or did you
18 adjourn the deposition, well go. 18 have an understanding asto variationsin that cost in
19 MR. JACOBS: Let mebeclear, Fram. 19 different grade levels?
20 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not agreeing to participate in 20 MR. VIRJEE: Same objectionsasto "cost" and
21 anex parte conference call with the commissioner right 21 adequecy.
22 now. No, I'm not agreeing to do that. 22 THE WITNESS: Costsvary.
23 MR. JACOBS: No, it'sanex parteif | doiton 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Bygradeleve, sir?
24 my own. 24 A. Bysubject by gradelevel.
25 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not agreeing to participate in 25 Q. Sothe$60, though, isan average acrossK
Page 51 Page 53
1 the conference cdl with the commissioner right now. 1 through 12, correct?
2 No, I'm not agreeing to do that. 2 A.  Andacrosssubjects.
3 MR. JACOBS:. And the basis for that? 3 Q. Butthat'sa--that figureisatota cost per
4 MR. VIRJEE: | don't need to give you a basis. 4 student per year, not a per subject per student per
5 I'mjust not agreeingto doit. 5 year?
6 MR. JACOBS: Soif | cal the commissioner now, 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
7 what will you do? 7 to"cost per student."
8 MR. VIRJEE: | won't do anything. | won't 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation.
9 participatein the phone call. 9 THE WITNESS: Average cost.
10 MR. JACOBS: But we can ask him whether you 10 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Of what?
11 should participate in the phone call. 11 A.  Of providing instructional resourcesto
12 MR. VIRJEE: If you want to adjourn the 12 students.
13 deposition and make a phone call, go ahead. Go ahead. 13 Q. Peryear?
14 MR. JACOBS: I'm suspending the depaosition to 14 A.  Peryear over time.
15 makethephonecall. Andyou will? 15 Q. Andbyinstructiond resourcein this context,
16 MR. VIRJEE: If youre going to adjourn the 16 areyou including materialsin addition to textbooks?
17 deposition, weregoingto go. If youretaking a 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
18 break, well take abresk and well come back when you 18 to "textbooks," unless you mean brick and mortar.
19 tdl usto comeback. Wejust took a break. 19 MR. JACOBS: | meant --
20 MR. JACOBS: | think I'm going to call the 20 MR. VIRJEE: Anactud textbook?
21 commissioner and seeif we can scheduleacdl. So 21 MR. JACOBS: Correct.
22 well take afive-minute break. Okay? 22 MR. VIRJEE: So you understand his definition
23 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou can do whatever you need to 23 now of textbook is the actual document, the brick and
24 do. 24 mortar.
25 (Recess taken.) 25 THE WITNESS: By textbook you mean just a
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1 textbook, or do you mean -- do you mean just atextbook? 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Solet'srefinethisdefinition 2 evidence
3 alittlebit. Inyour $60 per student estimate that you 3 THE WITNESS: No.
4 werereferring to earlier, what were you including in 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sothebest information you
5 the category of expenditures represented by that amount? 5 haveasto that question dates back to around that time
6 A. Ingructional materials broadly defined over an 6 frame?
7 eight-year cycle. 7 MR. VIRJEE: Around 1998?
8 Q. Andby"instructional materias broadly 8 MR. JACOBS. Yes.
9 défined,” what do you mean to include? 9 THE WITNESS: My best recollection of the
10 A.  Textbooks, supplemental materials, ditto 10 edtimate of that time.
11 masters, classroom libraries, et cetera. 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andasyou sit heretoday, if
12 Q. Butexcluding pencils? 12 you were caled upon in some nonlitigation context,
13 A.  Excuding pencils. 13 Mr. Mockler, how much does it cost to equip a student
14 Q. Excluding raw materialsfor -- such as blank 14 withingtructional materids, your answer would be --
15 paper? 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 16 MR. JACOBS: Let mefinish.
17 asto"raw materias." 17 Q.  --your answer would be, my best recollection
18 THE WITNESS: Excluding blank paper. 18 isdatafrom 1998, and that it was $60 per student?
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Excluding reproduction costs -- 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
20 excluding costs of using a Xerox machinein the school 20 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous.
21 to make materials for classroom purposes? 21 THEWITNESS: That was my estimate. The
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 22 egimate would be dightly higher today.
23 Lacksfoundation. Calsfor expert tetimony. There's 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Arethere-- based on your
24 been no foundation he has any knowledge about the 24 knowledge and experience in California public schoals,
25 delivery of educational resources in the classroom. 25 arethere schoolsin which in your judgment students are
Page 55 Page 57
1 THE WITNESS: The $60 estimate, or thereabouts, 1 not provided with, as you said here, the basic stuff of
2 presumesinstructional resources, broadly defined, 2 education from the standpoint of instructiona
3 purchased by the school digtrict. 3 materias?
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. And by purchased fromthe -- 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
5 A. "By 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. It assumes facts not
6 MR. VIRJEE: Purchased "by" the schoal 6 inevidenceto the extent youreindicating that he has
7 district. 7 some experiencein schools, because your question was
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: -- purchased by the schoal 8 vagueon that issue.
9 didtrict, you mean that each copy of the materials has 9 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor speculation.
10 been purchased from an external source; isthat correct? 10 THE WITNESS: | have no direct knowledge about
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 11 individual schodls.
12 to"copy." Some of these don't comein copies. 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And how about issuesinthe
13 THE WITNESS: Some comein blugline mastersin 13 school system?
14 which you repeat them, some are consumables that are 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
15 used and discarded in a short period, some are hard 15 THE WITNESS: We have heard testimony by some
16 covers, some are CD-ROMSs, some are -- instructiond 16 that some schools did not -- did not and do not have
17 materiasare not smply abook. 17 ingtructional materias for their students because they
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Letmeaskitalittle 18 have not purchased them or whatever.
19 differently. When you -- by that answer you mean to 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhenyourereferringto
20 exclude what the district or school might have spent in 20 ‘"testimony," are you referring to testimony you've heard
21 running its own reproduction machine, correct? 21 inyour role as executive director?
22 A. Correct. 22 A.  Most recently last month the former
23 Q. Doyou haveinformation to the same effect, 23 administrator of Compton Unified testified that when he
24 that is, the average per student costs of instructional 24 took over, the schools did not have materias for dl
25 materias, that has been updated since 1998? 25 kids and that they now do.
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1 Q. Isthereother testimony youre thinking of? 1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Haveyou participated in any
2 A, No 2 discussionsin the period 1998 to the present in which
3 Q. Sohaveyouheard-- let measkitalittle 3 questions on the management side as opposed to the
4 differently. 4 funding side, questions on the management of textbook
5 Have you received any other information, say, 5 availability have been on the agenda?
6 sincearound thetime of this article that is to that 6 A. Yes
7 similar effect? 7 Q.  Andwhat have been those discussions?
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Y ou're obviousy not 8 MR. SEFERIAN: [I'll object to the extent it
9 askingjust in his position as the executive director. 9 cdlsfor privileged communications.
10 MR. JACOBS: Correct. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 11 to"ontheagenda' and textbooks.
12 Lacksfoundation. 12 THE WITNESS: Isyour reference to State Board
13 THE WITNESS: | read the newspapers. |'veread 13 agenda?
14 articlesof this occurring, yes. 14 MR. JACOBS: Actudly, | meant agenda broadly.
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And asidefrom that, any other 15 Q. That'sbeenatopic tha you have discussed?
16 information to that effect? 16 A. | cananswer with respect to the State Board.
17 A. Noofficia information. 17 We have had digtricts who did not comply technically
18 Q. Atthe American Association of Publishers, did 18 with the law and were requesting the State Board to
19 you ever have occasion to come across information about 19 waivetechnicdly the law to absolve them of a penaty
20 thesameissue, that is, whether there were schools that 20 that occurs.
21 werenot giving students sufficient instructional 21 Q. Thisisthe60119 provision of the statute?
22 materias? 22 A. Yes | bdievethat'stheright section.
23 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou asking did he ever learn 23 Q. Andinthat context have you had discussions
24  that from the Association? 24 about the question of the management of textbooks and
25 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 25 how that relates to whether sufficient instructional
Page 59 Page 61
1 MR. VIRJEE: Because| dont think there's been 1 materids are available to students?
2 any testimony that he's been at the Association. 2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Inyour capecity asa 3 to"textbooks," "sufficient” and "available.”
4 consultant for them, did you receive that information? 4 THE WITNESS: Discussions? What do you mean by
5 A. | haveavaguerecollection that they had done 5 discussions? To mediscussion could be acocktail party
6 some survey work nationwide on that issue, and that they 6 conversation.
7 found, which, of course, isin their interest, that 7 MR. JACOBS:. That'swhy | said "in that
8 there were schools and students that did not have 8 context." Youweretalking about the waiver.
9 ingtructional materials. 9 THE WITNESS: State Board. Okay. Yes, there
10 Q. Anddidyou-- 10 were. It wasclear that the notification with respect
11 A.  Broadly defined. 11 tothat section wasvague. It was clear that some
12 Q. Anddidyou have-- did you receive information 12 districts had not obeyed that section of law. It was
13 at that time about why that was s0? 13 clear that some of those not obeying the law were
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 14 technical, inadvertent and immaterid, but that others
15 THE WITNESS: Only supposition. 15 were questionable management practices.
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What was the supposition? 16 And the policy of the Board under law was that
17 A.  Funding and management. 17 they were dlowed to waive for technical and inadvertent
18 Q. Didthe-- andinsofar as management was 18 circumstances, i.e., we're supposed to place three
19 concerned, did you have any more detailed information or | 19 notices, but there's only one gas station in town, or
20 supposition on the management issuesthat would leadto | 20 that it was a29-day notice, not a 30-day notice, and
21 that result? 21 those were waivable under the law, but that more serious
22 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou're taking about with the 22 violationswerenot. So the State Board developed a
23  American Association of Publishers? 23 policy around when they would and when they would not
24 MR. JACOBS:. Yes. 24 waivethat section.
25 THE WITNESS: No. 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And the conditionsthat result
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1 inanonwaiver, did those conditionsinclude any direct 1 LA Timesonlots of subjects, and that one too.
2 information about -- strike that. 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have arecollection of
3 What were the conditions that would resultina 3 reading this particular article?
4  nonwaiver? 4 A. Not paticularly.
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Callsfor 5 Q. Yourepaaphrased on page 88 of the printout.
6 speculation. Vagueastotime. 6 A. Right
7 MR. SEFERIAN: The policy speaks for itsdlf. 7 Q. Theésadiscussion there of the hearings that
8 THE WITNESS: The policy is more to what you 8 | bdievewe were discussing, and you are said to have
9 will waive, not what you will not. It's narrowly 9 said something along the lines of, John Mockler,
10 defined. 10 executive director of the State of Board of Education,
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Havethere been casesin which 11 said, the hearings should be advertised so that
12 the State Board has denied waivers for noncompliance 12 gudents, parents and teachers can tdll their stories.
13 with 60119? 13 To be more accurate about it, you are said to have said
14 A. | dontrecal aspecificinstance. The policy 14 something along the lines of the hearings should be
15 onwaiverstypicaly isadministered by the agency and 15 advertised so that students, parents and teachers can
16 theyinform the districts who seek waivers of the 16 tdl their stories. Do you seethat?
17 likelihood of that being successful, and weretold 17 A. Yes | bdievewhat | told the reporter was
18 anecdotally that districtsin other circumstances did 18 what the law states that the district must do.
19 not proceed with the waiver. | don't recall a 19 Q. Anddidyou provide--
20 particular - 20 A. They must have anoticed public hearing.
21 Q. The60119 requiresapublic hearingto reach 21 Q. Anddidyou go onto say something along the
22 certain conclusions, correct? 22 lines of, so that students, parents and teachers can
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The statute speaks for 23 tdl ther stories?
24 itsdf. Cdlsfor alegd conclusion. 24 MR. VIRJEE: If you recdll.
25 THE WITNESS: That's my understanding. 25 THE WITNESS: | don't recall having said that.
Page 63 Page 65
1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andthe purpose of the statute 1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Do you bdievethat'sone of
2 istoimprove accountability at thelocal level for 2 the purposesto be served by the public hearing?
3 didtrict performance in ddivering textbooks or 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
4 instructional materias to students, correct? 4 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "purpose,"
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 andcalsfor alegd conclusion.
6 to"purpose." Calsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. 6 THE WITNESS: | believe the statute requires
7 Cdlsfor alega conclusion. 7 such notification.
8 THE WITNESS: Thelaw, as| understand it, 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou don't have an opinion
9 requiresan annua public hearing and afinding, and if 9 astothe policy purpose served by the notification?
10 thefinding is not positive, then the district must take 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
11 action within atime period to ensure that the 11 Cadlisfor speculation. Cdlsfor aninadmissible
12 provisions of the law are carried out. 12 opinion.
13 MR. JACOBS: Let's mark thisas 235. 13 THE WITNESS: In my view the law requires
14 (Exhibit SAD-235 was marked.) 14 public notice and notification of parties, and that's
15 Q. BY MR JACOBS: ThisisanarticlefromLos 15 what digtricts are required to do.
16 Angees Times, dated July 16, 2000, headline, with state 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou dont have an opinion
17 checkbook open, some students still lack texts; 17 astothe policy purpose served by the provisions you've
18 education; some schools have unused books in storage. 18 justreferred to?
19 Changing standards also cause delays. 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
20 Let me ask you, generally have you read the LA 20 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion.
21 Times-- doyou recdl reading any LA Times articles 21 THE WITNESS: My opinion isthe law was clear
22 about textbook issuesin the Los Angeles Unified Schoal 22 that the statute expectslocd districts to meet the
23 Didtrict? 23 instructiona resources needs of kidsin their school.
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vagueastotime. 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat'sthe purpose of the
25 THE WITNESS: | recall reading articlesin the 25 hearing?
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MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor
speculaion. Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What'sthe purpose of the -- of
advertising the hearing?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: The purpose of advertising, to
give public notice of an action.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou don't have any opinion
beyond that as to the purpose of advertisement?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. Asked and
answered.

THE WITNESS: Under the statute two things
happen, you must make afinding. The questioniis, isit
accurate, and second of al if your finding is negative,
the district has an open-ended right to raid other
funds. So one would presume that both are something the
public ought to know about. There's wide latitude for
digtricts to fund whatever needs they have.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Just to beclear, you don't
recdl saying in words or substance, so that students,
parents, teachers can tell their stories?

A. | dontrecall saying that, but that doesn't
mean | didn't.

Q. Asyou st heretoday, do you believe
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tell their stories with an emphasis on the "so that"
clause of the sentence?
A. Isthequestion do | disagree with what you

just said?
Q. Yes
A. No.

Q. Inthe State Board of Education when you've had
discussions on 60119, have you had discussions about the
efficacy of the hearing requirements in improving the
availability of textbooks or instructional materialsto
students?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "efficacy," and assumes facts not in evidence.

MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: What does "efficacy” mean?

MR. JACOBS: Effectiveness.

THE WITNESS: Effectiveness. Not to my
recollection.

MR. VIRJEE: Y ou've answered the question.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sir, did you wish to clarify
your answer?
A.  It'sour obligation to make sure that the
hearings are held.
Q. Do you have an opinion, based on your knowledge
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affirmatively that you did not say that because you did
not believe that to be the purpose of advertising the
hearings?

A. No. No. Istha adouble negative?

Q. Ithink so.

A. Isnoyesoryesno?

MR. VIRJEE: No.

MR. JACOBS: Let the record reflect laughter.
Q. Letmeaskitalittle differently to avoid the
double negative.

Asyou sit here today, what is your opinion on
whether the hearings should be advertised so that
students, parents and teachers can tell their stories?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor an inadmissible apinion.

THE WITNESS: | think the obligationisto
notice the public hearings and notify the parties called
for in law.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyouhaveno-- | need ayes
or no answer, | guess, to this question, if you can give
one.

Do you disagree --
A. No. Sorry.
Q. Do you disagree that the hearings should be

advertised so that students, parents and teachers can
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and experience with educationa issues, asto whether
the provisions of 60119 are effective in achieving
greater availability of textbooks or instructiona
materials to students?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "availability." Callsfor speculation, and lacks
foundation.

THE WITNESS: | have opinions on amost
everything.

MR. VIRJEE: So stipulated.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat isyour opinion on
that subject, sir?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THEWITNESS: Itisclear from the record that
schooal districts, many school districtsinitialy did
not pay attention to that section of law, but that have
subsequently, because of the pendtiesinvolved, paid a
great ded of attention to that law, and therefore it
would be my view that it's been an important part of the
statute.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andimportant in accomplishing
what?

A.  Making sure school digtricts are aware asto

whether or not students have appropriate instructional
resources, and their duty under the law.
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Q. Andisthat -- | take it that one basis for
that opinion is the wider dissemination of knowledge
about what the statute requires since you had that
discussion about the ambiguity in the communication with
the districts; isthat correct?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
THEWITNESS: It's the number of districts that
sought waiversinitialy, but not subsequently.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sothenumber of districts --
based on the waiver applications, you believe more
digtricts arein compliance with the spirit and
substance -- well, the substance of the 60119 hearing
requirements, yes?
A. Yes
Q. Andasidefrom that, do you have any other
information for believing that the -- any other basis
for believing that the statute has achieved the gods
that you set out a couple minutes ago in your answe,
that was, making visible to the district whether it
was -- what the textbook issues were and aiming &t the
resolution?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Also misstates his testimony as to what the gods were.
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "role" and "setting the agenda.” 1'm assuming you're
not just talking about physicaly putting together the
agenda, what goesoniit.

MR. JACOBS: Correct.

THE WITNESS: 'Y ou mean the content of the State
Board's agenda?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: We work with the superintendent
and the Board president in creating the agenda.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andfrom the standpoint of --
do you have a particular role in that process as
executive director?

A.  Board staff coordinates the creation of the
agenda. Much of thework is accomplished by the
superintendent's office.

Q.  Canyou describe what the role of the executive
director is?

A.  Youwork for the State Board of Education. We
administer asmall staff, we advise the Board with
respect to duties imposed upon it by statutes, we carry
out the duties called for in statute and the duties put
forth by the Board.

24 | don't think he used the word "goals," and | don't 24 Q.  Whenyou refer to "asmal staff,” how many
25 think he used the same description. 25 people are you talking about?
Page 71 Page 73
1 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor speculation. 1 MR. VIRJEE: How many people does he asthe
2 THE WITNESS: Nothing explicit. Anecdota 2 executive director supervise?
3 information. 3 MR.JACOBS: Yes.
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisthereany evauation -- 4 THE WITNESS: About 10.
5 and by evaluation | mean a study-type evauation -- 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have acapacity in --
6 currently underway in the Department to answer that 6 srikethat.
7 Question? 7 What isthat group caled, Board staff?
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation 8 A. State Board of Education staff.
9 astowhat'sgoing oninthe Department. Lacks any 9 Q. Doesthe State Board of Education steff have
10 foundation. 10 the capacity to enter into agreements with third parties
11 THE WITNESS: | have genera information 11 toconduct studies?
12 that -- that the Department asked some questions 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
13 regarding materiadsin schools. I'venot seena 13 asto"capacity.” Callsfor aninadmissible lega
14 research project on that. 14 opinion.
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By "asked some questions,” what | 15 THEWITNESS: No.
16 areyoureferring to? 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any independent
17 A.  Ms Griffith, Sherry Griffith, who isin the 17 research, what you regard as an independent research
18 agency, has done, | believe, some survey work -- | have 18 capability on the Board staff?
19 not seentheresults. | believe there are others -- to 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 get generdized information. 20 to "independent research capability.”
21 Q. Doyou have any information about what the 21 And now you're talking about Board staff,
22 results of that have been? 22 right?
23 A. No. 23 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
24 Q. Andasthe executive director of the Board, 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible legd
25 what isyour rolein setting the Board's agenda? 25 opinion.
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THE WITNESS: What do you mean by "research"?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: The ahility to go out and --
that'sagood question. Let's focus on textbooks for a
minute.

Do you have any -- on the Board staff do you
have any resources that potentialy could be applied to
answering the question whether 60119 has been effective
in achieving any goals with respect to textbooks or
instructional materials?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
asto "resources." Cadls-- incomplete and improper
hypothetical question. Lacks foundation.

THEWITNESS: State Board staff is not funded
for those types of activities.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And because you're not funded,
thereforeitis--
A.  Theduties of the --

MR. SEFERIAN: Plesselet him finish the
guestion, Mr. Mockler.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wereyou going to clarify your
previous answer?

A.  Just the duties of the -- the duties of the

staff in place don't include that function.

Q. Andthat'strue generdly aso that the duties

of the staff don't include studies regarding
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MR. JACOBS: Yes.

Q. Asamatter of practice does the Board staff
review -- let'stake Little Hoover Commission. Doesthe
Board staff review Little Hoover Commission studies
concerning public education?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also vague asto time and compound.

THE WITNESS: From time to time those documents
are reviewed to the extent they pertain to our duties.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Istherea-- does someoneon
the staff have the responsibility to provide the results

or summaries of Little Hoover Commission reports that
pertain to State Board of Education duties to State
Board members?

MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
for privileged communications.

THEWITNESS: Ther€e's-- no.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Andisthereavehicleaside
from Board staff for that? Asyou understand the way
studies filter up to board members, isthere avehicle
other than board staff for that to occur?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation
as to how Board members might get Little Hoover
Commission studies.

THE WITNESS: There's no specific requirement
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effectiveness of policies and programs?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor
inadmissible legal opinion.

MR. VIRJEE: Alsooverbroad. Vagueand
ambiguous and compound.

THEWITNESS: Limited.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Limited to what?
A.  Limited ability. We have smart people that can
review data, but they have many tasks.
Q. Andsoyou could review datathat's available
from other sources, correct?
A.  That'scorrect.
Q. Andyou can review studies that have been
conducted by the Department of Education?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
asto "you."

THE WITNESS: Theword is could?

MR.JACOBS: Yes.

THEWITNESS: Yes.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And could you review studies
done by third parties such asthe Little Hoover
Commission?

MR. VIRJEE: Youreaskingisit possible that
the Board staff could review those things?

THEWITNESS: Yes.
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to review Little Hoover Commission studies. Board
members request reviews. To the extent we have staff to
do that, we do that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisthat a-- something that
an individual board member can request, or doesthe
Board have to act to make that request?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.

Are you asking whether the Board member has the
legd ability to do that?

MR. JACOBS: No, just apractica matter.

MR. VIRJEE: Whether they doit? Because you
said it's something they could, so I'm just trying to
understand your question.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What's the mechanism by which
your review of studies for board members occurs?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfacts.
Assumes there's specific mechanisms.

THE WITNESS: Statute policy, board member
requests individually or collectively.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And let'stake an example.
Actually, before we do that, let's just talk now about
the staffing when you were interim secretary of
education on that side of the house.

What was the staffing of the office of the
secretary of education when you were interim secretary?
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A. I'mguessing, but about, | think, 15, and |
think another three on the mentor program, so about 18,
19.
Q.  What wasthe "mentor program’?
A. It'saprogram to encourage and fund citizens
mentoring students in schooal.
Q. Andthisisaprogram that was operated out of
the --
A.  Administered by the secretary’s office.
Q.  Thecapacity of the -- strike that.

What do we cdl that group, staff of the office
of secretary?
A.  Itreportsto the secretary.
Q. Andisthereanamefor the group?
A.  It'sthe mentor unit.
Q. I'msorry, | wasreferring to the rest of the
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same for reviewing studies from third parties, correct?
A. Y es, within their duties they do review

studies.

Q. And within their duties, do they contract for
studies to be performed?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also vague and ambiguous as to "they
contract.”

THE WITNESS: The secretary's office has
contracted for some studies that's called for by statute
or the Budget Act.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And by "statute” you mean
there's a legidative mandate for the secretary's office
to conduct a particular study?

A. Correct, and funding.

Q.  Andhow about any kind of a discretionary

17 team, not the mentor unit, but the 15 staff persons. 17 capability to do that?
18 A. | wasjusttrying to calculate the number in my 18 A. No discretionary money for that.
19 head. The staff worksfor the secretary. 19 Q. How would you characterize the differencein
20 Q. Doyou cdl themthe secretary's staff? 20 roles, let's say, statutorily-defined roles to begin
21 A. Yes 21 with, between the secretary of education and the
22 Q. Didthe secretary's staff have the capability 22 superintendent of public instruction? Let's start
23 toengage third parties to conduct research on 23 there.
24 educetiona policy questions? 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 evidence. Assumes there are statutorily-defined roles
Page 79 Page 81
1 to"capability" and "conduct research." Also callsfor 1 for both. Also callsfor speculation and lacks
2 speculation. Vagueastotime. 2 foundation. And to the extent you're asking what the
3 THE WITNESS: Could you clarify "research 3 dautesrequire, calsfor alega conclusion.
4 capacity," those two terms, | mean? 4 MR. SEFERIAN: It's overly broad.
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let mewak it theway you 5 THE WITNESS:. The secretary's officeis
6 walkedit before. A staff person in the secretary staff 6 advisory to the governor. Thereis no statute creating
7 could review data provided by outsiders, correct? 7 thedffice, to my knowledge. There are statutes that
8 A. Yes 8 direct some of the duties, for example, the mentor
9 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou're asking whether it's 9 program. The superintendent of public ingtructionisa
10 physicaly possible? 10 statewide eected condtitution officer and has severd
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andtherewould bean 11 statutorial duties.
12 indtitutional capacity in the office of the secretary of 12 MR. HAJELA: | have aquestion for Mike and for
13 education to review data from third parties, yes? 13 you, Fram. | have very few questions for Mr. Mockler,
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14 but does it make sense to ask them as we're going over
15 to"indtitutional capacity." 15 subject aress, or just ask them al at the end?
16 Are you asking whether they have some statutory 16 MR. VIRJEE: Wait until the end.
17 or legidativeright to do that, or just whether they 17 MR. HAJELA: Andthereason | ask that isif |
18 havethe physical capacity based on staff members? It's 18 have something on textbooks, do | have to establish all
19 vague and ambiguous. 19 over again that he said average $60, or are we just
20 MR. JACOBS: In any of those sentences, Sir. 20 goingto let me go?
21 THE WITNESS: Within the staff of the 21 MR. VIRJEE: Just going to let you go.
22 secretary's office, when | was there, they had limited 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Isthisagood time for alunch
23 capacity to review datagiven by numbers. Their duties 23 break?
24  are assigned by the governor and by statute. 24 MR. JACOBS: Actually, itis.
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andtheanswer would bethe 25 (Recess teken.)
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1 MR. JACOBS: Let me show you an article from 1 attorney/client privilege.
2 theLosAngdes Times dated July 28, 1997, which we will 2 THE WITNESS: | don't recall talking about
3 mark as 236. 3 lottery funding at the State Board ever.
4 (Exhibit SAD-236 was marked.) 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Letmegetatinadightly
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Just tofocusyou onthe 5 different way. Isit your understanding that generally
6 portion that's specifically relevant to you, you're 6 lottery money isthought of as categoricd funding as
7 quoted at the bottom of page 13 as stating, quote, weve 7 opposed to base aid?
8 alocated huge amounts of other monies, like lottery, 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
9 for ingtructional material over the last three years, 9 to"baseald," and aso callsfor speculation.
10 close quote, said John Mockler, a Sacramento lobbyist 10 THE WITNESS: Lottery funds are allocated on a
11 retained by both Textbook Publishers and LA Unified. 11 dollar amount and can be spent for any purpose the local
12 Quote, there's no reason they shouldn't have a book for 12 didtrict deems.
13 everyKkid, period, close quote. 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthereason | ask isthat
14 Do you seethat? 14 when| think of categoricals, | usudly think of
15 A Yes 15 purpose-specific funding.
16 Q. Andifyouwantto scanthearticle for its 16 MR. SEFERIAN: He hasn't asked you a question.
17 context, I'll ask you afew questions about it. 17 Pleaselet him ask you aquestion first.
18 A.  Yesh 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sowhenyourefertoitas
19 Q. Doyourecdl thisarticle? 19 categorica, I'mwondering if that's common parlance or
20 A. Vagudy, yeah. 20 not?
21 Q. Isthequote accurate? 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
22 A. Reasonably so. | mean, the words may not be 22 Lacksfoundation asto "common parlance,”" in what
23 precise, but that's how the press operates. 23 context.
24 Q. Soinsubstance you said what's quoted? 24 THEWITNESS: Yes.
25 A, Yeah 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And my understanding of
Page 83 Page 85
1 Q. Lemeaskyouy,first of dl, about lottery 1 categoricd, istherefore flawed, categorica funding as
2 moniesin that paragraph. When we were having our 2 you used theterm is not necessarily purpose specific;
3 discussion early on about revenue sources for schools, 3 isthat correct?
4 how do lottery monies fit into the various buckets that 4 A. Tha'scorrect.
5 you identified? 5 Q. Andthenwhat definesit as categoricd asyou
6 A. Lottery moneyisdlocated on aflat amount per 6 usedthetermiswhat?
7 student precisdly per ADA, and that money may be used by 7 A. It'sasgparate pot of money unreated to the
8 alocal digtrict or university or whatever. 8 revenuelimit system.
9 Q. Andinthe--what | took down as notes of the 9 Q. Andyouve participated in discussions in which
10 various buckets for revenue included the base, 10 thequestion of the relative amount of funding that
11 categorica -- 11 didtricts have discretion over versus amounts that's
12 A. It'scategoricdl. 12 purpose specific has been on the table, yes?
13 Q. It'scategorica but open ended? 13 MR. VIRJEE: Y oureasking --
14 A. Generd categorical. 14 MR. JACOBS:. I'mjust setting the predicate
15 Q. Andasyou understand the discussion about 15 for --
16 school financein -- strike that. 16 MR. VIRJEE: Has he ever had those discussions?
17 When you've participated in discussions about 17 MR. JACOBS:. Yes.
18 schoal financein your capecity at the State Board, has 18 THEWITNESS: Yes.
19 it been understood that lottery money is thought of as 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andinthat context isit
20 caegorical? 20 typica for peopleto think of -- isn't that pie usualy
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 divided up between the base funding and categoricals?
22 to"categorical." Also assumes facts not in evidence. 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
23 Assumesthat he's participated in discussions about 23  Compound.
24 school finance at the State Board. Also object on the 24 THE WITNESS: Definition of categorical?
25 grounds of official information privilege and 25 MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation depending on
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the context.

Areyou il back at the State Board level, by
the way?

MR. JACOBS: Just in generd. Common parlance
here.
Q. Letmeaskitthisway. I'll askit very
directly and if you can answer it, great, if not, no.

I'veread alot of articlesin which the
comment is made that over time the amount of money that
digtrictslack discretionary control over has gone up
relative to the amount of money as to which they have
discretionary control. Y ou've seen similar articles,
yes?
A. Oh, yes.
Q.  Usudlywhen | read those articles they
distinguish between on the one hand categorical
expenditures, and seem to assume that as to categoricas
digtricts don't have discretion as compared with the
discretion they have over base dlocations.

Have you read articlesin which that same
assumption -- isthat typical in your experience as
well?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Vague and ambiguous as to "typicd."

THEWITNESS: That would be anarrow definition
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THE WITNESS: That's about five yearsago. In
that time there are -- the provisions of the Bustamante
Act alows school districts the authority to access dl,
unless otherwise expressed negatively, categoricalsto
fund instructional materids, broadly stated.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andisthat till truein 20027

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.

MR. VIRJEE: Cadlsfor speculation. Callsfor
alegd conclusion.

THE WITNESS: Isyour questionisthelaw
essentially the same?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you said there€'s no reason
they shouldn't have abook for every kid, you were

saying that money is not areason that they shouldn't

have abook for every kid, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "book for every kid." Assumes facts not in evidence.

(Ms. Duffy |eft the room.)

THE WITNESS: | use the term book, textbook,
instructional resources, instructional materials
broadly. And | believe there were funds available from
avariety of sources that could have been used to ensure
awide array of ingtructional materials for kids.
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used by those seeking one form of aid or another.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andmore properly you think
that, therefore, lottery money should be thought of
as -- inthis context as money that schools do, in fact,
have broad discretion over how to spend?
A. Yes
Q. And doyou have arule of thumb answer to the
guestion how much lottery money per student is currently
being distributed in the state?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "distributed." Vague and ambiguous asto
“"currently.”

MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: Are you speaking of the last
couple years?

MR.JACOBS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: About $125 a student.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you made the comment
that's reflected on the bottom of page 13 of Exhibit
236, did you have any particular factsin mind in terms
of data on cost or data about recent allocations of
money for textbooks?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation about what he might have had in mind in
July of 1997 when he made a comment.
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sotheanswer to my question,
aside from your definition of the word "book," is
correct, yes?

MR. VIRJEE: The answer to your questionis
correct.

THE WITNESS: Yes. If your questionisdidthe
schooals have resources available for which they could
have purchased materials for students, broadly stated,
the answer isyes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou were not disputing that
students -- you were not disputing the factual

presentation at the time that there were students who

didn't have such access to instructional materials,

correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "factual presentation." There's been no evidence
that there was afactua presentation made. Lacks
foundation. Callsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: | believe | was asked aquestion
by areporter who said that they had found
circumstances, and | said the circumstances -- if those
circumstances exi<t, there are resources to overcome
them.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou meant to imply by that,
did you nat, that it was not a finance issue but a
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management issueif text -- instructional materials were
not in the hands of students, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also compound. Also cdls for
speculation as to what he might have meant in 1997.

THEWITNESS: | believe that there is never as
much money as wed like to have in schools, but when
you're talking $60 a student, there is sufficient
resources at that time, and more now, for local
management to ensure that the provisions of 60119 are
carried out.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by the"provisions of
60119," in this context you mean more than holding the
public hearing, correct?

A. 60119 goeswell beyond the public hearing.

Q.  Sowhat did you mean when you said ther€'s
enough resources to carry out the provisions of 60119?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Cdlsfor alega conclusion.

THE WITNESS: 60119, my layman's understanding
of it, requires both the public hearing, and if the
finding is you do not have materias, then you are
directed to access any other revenue source to produce
that result within atwo-year period.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And"theresult" being what?
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vague astotime.

MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: Inany -- I'mtrying to follow
the question. Isyour question does the State address
local management issues, or is your question are there
other steps that the State may have taken with respect
to thisinstructional materialsissue?

MR. JACOBS: | guess| mean it in the second
sense, but with the focus on management as you've used
that word.

MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.

(Ms. Duffy entered the room.)

THEWITNESS: | think actions taken over time
with respect to 60119 and with respect to alocation of
funding addressed both i ssues, management and funding.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And anything elsethat you
would point to as addressing management?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "management.” Callsfor speculation. Andtothe
extent you're asking what the law requires, calsfor a
legal conclusion.

MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: Nothing in particular. Wide
variety of discussion, et cetera. When you raisethe
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A.  That students have abroad array of textbooks
and other instructional materials, instructional
resources, if youwill. And it says textbooks or
instructional materials, so it's a broad definition of
what kids might need in various circumstances.

Q. Andsoitisyour belief, therefore, that if

that objective isnot met, | guess, there are two
possibilities, oneis a ddiberate decision is made not
to meet it, and the other is that management
inadequacies block achievement of that objective; is
that correct?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Cdls
for speculation. Incomplete and improper hypothetical
guestion. Overly broad. Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: | don't think you can have a
single reason for this, if that phenomenon -- of that
phenomenon, instructional materias broadly not
availableto students. There are avariety of factors
involved. Management is certainly one of them.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And areyou aware of any steps
that have been taken at the state level to address
management as an issuein the availability of textbooks

or other instructional materials to students?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "availability," "address" and "management." Also
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issue up, it's more likely to be solved.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. Just to be clear, your answer
is nothing in particular, there have been discussions,
and when there are discussions the problem is more
likely to be solved?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Misstates his
testimony. His testimony speaks for itself.

THE WITNESS. My testimony was in addition to
funding and the provisions of 60119. With respect to
specificity, | think the answer to your question isI'm
not aware of any specific managerial action, but that
the response with respect to 60119 and the public
discussion of the issue seems to have put it on a front
burner.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And the evidence for that is --
in your view is what?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Asked and answered. Calls for inadmissible opinion.

MR. VIRJEE: And "for that," you mean putting
it on the front burner?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: Anecdotal information and the
discussions around waivers related to 60119.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: The chronology of the
discussions around the waiver in avery rough senseis
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1 wha? 1 evidence you mean.
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | dont think the answer turns
3 to"chronology" and "discussions.” I'm sorry, Michad, 3 onthat though, doesit? The question is whether you
4 what are you asking? 4 think it'stoo soon to tell from the Board action
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Bascdly I'masking when you 5 whether 60119 if fully implemented is effective?
6 would date the -- 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
7 A. I'dhavetohavesomehelp. | cametothe 7 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous
8 Boardin November of '99, but | know there were 8 asto "effective.”
9 discussions prior to that. So I'm not quite sure of 9 MR. VIRJEE: Also calsfor alegal conclusion.
10 thosediscussions, | wasn't there. 10 THEWITNESS: | mentioned anumber of issues,
11 But subsequent to '99 the -- it was clear that 11 one, the appropriation of $3 hillion; two, the
12 didtricts, from their testimony, were not properly 12 provisions of 60119; three, public notice, as you've
13 informed initialy of their duties under -- at least 13 noted in your newspaper articles, attention to the fact
14 that wastheir position, and they sought waivers, some 14 or lack thereof whether students have wide-ranging
15 fromtechnical violations, some for other violations, 15 instructiond meaterials.
16 andthe Board took severa actions with respect to that. 16 | know of no inclusive empirical study that
17 Q. | guessmy questionisthis, based on your 17 demonstratesimprovement or lack of improvement, but my
18 understanding of those discussions, the anecdotal 18 impression isthere's been substantial improvement.
19 information you referred to and the other information 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Withaspecific focus on 60119
20 you have, do you believe that the State Board of 20 and the greater focus on compliance with the hearing
21 Education actions are too recent to allow for an 21 requirements that you described, do you think that
22 evauation of whether those actions coupled with the 22 there's been enough time to see whether that mechanism
23 satutory provisions have, in fact, resulted in 23 iseffective or nat, or if you were presented with
24 improvement in the management of textbook availability? 24 empirical evidence of textbook issues, would you say,
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 giveit moretime?
Page 95 Page 97
1 to"management of textbook availability." Callsfor 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
2 gpeculation. Lacksfoundation. And also misstates his 2 Vague and ambiguous asto "empirical evidence." Also
3 testimony. 3 incomplete hypothetical. And also misstates his
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor aninadmissible 4 testimony to the extent you were trying to incorporate
5 opinion. 5 that. He said there's more than just the hearing
6 THE WITNESS: | have no hard evidence. | have 6 requirementsin 60119, because you asked about both
7 my-- my gut tells meit's gotten better both for 7 60119 and the hearing requirements.
8 management, and the fact that weve appropriated $3 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And!'ll just smplify thisfor
9 hillionin addition to what we were appropriating in 9 you. If youwill tell methat you will not testify on
10 1997. 10 September 23rd or theregfter that it's too soon to tell
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: My specific questionisin 11 because weve only recently stepped up our effortsto
12 terms of the chronology of the Board actions if the 12 ensure compliance with 60119, | will go away on this
13 empirical evidence were such -- were to indicate that 13 topic.
14 textbooks -- that there are still textbook issues of the 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
15 sort described in the -- in Exhibit 236 around the 15 Lacksfoundation. Assumesfactsnot in evidence.
16 sate, would your response to that empirical evidence be 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: But you understand my job here
17 it'still too soon to tell, we should give 60119 more 17 isto understand what the State might ask you to testify
18 time? 18 toand whether there'sabasis for it?
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 19 A. Yes |dontactualy understand your purpose,
20 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "textbook | 20 but | understand. | think the -- we have 8, 9,000
21 issues' and "empirica evidence." Callsfor expert 21 schoolsin California. Anything you say about a school
22 testimony. 22 in Cdliforniaon any day is probably happening
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper 23 somewhere, good or bad, so anecdotal evidence doesn't
24 hypothetical question. Lacks foundation. 24 help me much.
25 THE WITNESS: | don't know what empirica 25 If you're talking about empirical research
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about -- across the board, you'd have to take alook at
that. The question is not perfection. The questioniis,
isit areasonable chance that it's better. My
impression, with no systematic research, isthat it is.

Q. Andfor dl the reasons that you described,

that is, funding and the greater attention on 60119's
compliance? ‘

A.  Andpublic notice.

Q. Andsointerms of the chronology of this, of
these policy changes, when would you say that dl three
conditions were met, that is, the Board had -- was
assuring that there was better understanding of 60119,
No. 1, 2, the money that you were referring to had been
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on ageneralized action?

MR. JACOBS: I'm not sure what you mean by
"generdized action”.

THE WITNESS: Isit better or isit perfect?
Isthat how we know something works?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mredlyjust asking you on
the time -- if you view this as an experiment that is
testable, how long have these set of experimental
conditions that you described been existent?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.

MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
"experiment." He'stestifying about the statute. Calls

14 appropriated and, 3, there was the public attention that 14 for speculation. Callsfor an expert opinion.
15 youreferred to? 15 THE WITNESS: | can't answer that. | don't
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 16 have any way to answer that question.
17 Assumesfacts not in evidence. Compound guestion. 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And the reason you can't answer
18 THE WITNESS: What's the question? 18 itis?
19 MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation. 19 A. | don'tunderstand your specific -- what
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Whenwould you say thosethree | 20 data-- | don't understand what you're asking about.
21 conditions were met? 21  How would I know these things?
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 22 Q. Youwould know when the funding levels had been
23 Thoseare not conditions that can be met or not met. 23 asyou described?
24 Cdlsfor speculaion. Callsfor an expert opinion. 24 A,  Yes
25 Alsoincomplete hypothetical. 25 Q. Youwould know when the Board actions that
Page 99 Page 101
1 THE WITNESS: What's the question? 1 youve described were taken, and you have some
2 Q. BY MR JACOBS: I'mback tomy tria testimony 2 impressions about greater public attention.
3 and I'mimagining you on the stand saying the plaintiffs 3 Those are the three things that you said lead
4 arewrong about the system that we have set up, we've 4 youto believe that the situation has improved?
5 seenimprovement in textbook availability and these 5 A Correct.
6 conditions, money, public attention, and better 6 Q. Andsomyquestionis, how long have those
7 compliance with the terms of 60119. They've only been 7 threethings beenin place?
8 out there for the last six months, so who isto say 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
9 whether they are sufficient or not. And it's that six 9 Lacksfoundation. | don't want you to guess or
10 monthsthat I'm asking you abouit. 10 speculae.
1 How long is-- 11 THE WITNESS: | think they're constant.
12 A. Six months? Where did that come from? 12 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Wédl, they didn't exist before
13 Q. Ijust madeitup. | don't want you to testify 13 60119 was enacted, right?
14 tothat unlessyou tell me now so | can go out and rebut 14 A. Right. Money began -- huge money, huge money
15 it 15 beganin'98,'99. The adoption cycleis an eight-year
16 MR. VIRJEE: Hewon't testify to anything you 16 cycle
17 makeup. 17 Q.  Andhow doesthe adoption cycle rdlate to --
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How long will you say that has 18 A. Digtrictstend to buy materials within 18
19 been the situation so that we can now test whether that 19 months of -- in dementary when the State Board adopts
20 situation, that combination of policies and procedures 20 them. That'sthe cyclethat'stypical.
21  has addressed the textbook issue? 21 Q. Sopartof your -- part of the explanation for
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 22 shortages, weve heard this dsewhere, isthat districts
23 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion. Assumes 23 arewaiting for textbooks to be adopted before buying
24 factsnotinevidence. Vague and ambiguous. 24 them.
25 THE WITNESS: Isyour judgment on perfection or 25 Do you share that as apartia causal
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explanation for why there may be, in some schools around
the state, shortages of textbooks?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Incomplete hypothetical question. Callsfor
speculaion. Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

THE WITNESS: | have no independent
verification of that.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: So, again, come September if
they ask you that question, Mr. Mockler, isn't it true
that we haven't given these policies enough time because
the textbook adoption cycle hasn't been played out, you
don't have a basis for answering that one way or the
other, right?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "adoption cycle." Calsfor speculation. Lacks
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to as leading to improvement in the availability of
textbooks and instructional materials to students needs
additiona time before any adjustment to those policies
aimed at greater improvement in the availability of
textbooks or instructional materials is considered?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. Callsfor an
expert opinion. Vague asto time.

THE WITNESS: I'min the business of making
things better, so if somebody has away to make them
better, I'm for making them better. | can't tell you
that there's nothing better out there.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: | think that's not an answer to
my question.

A. Sorry.

Q.  Youve participated in policy discussions, I'm

17 foundation. 17 sure, sir, in which one proponent of a particular policy
18 THEWITNESS: | might know more in September 18 hassaid, we've got to change this, and another
19 than | know now. 19 proponent has said, let's give the existing system more
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asyou sit heretoday? 20 timeto play itself out?
21 A. | havenoindependent research, ability to tell 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. Vague and
22 youwhat theresultsare. | have no knowledge of that. 22 ambiguous. Compound.
23 Q.  Andsonow we've taken -- in terms of your 23 THE WITNESS: Sure.
24 knowledge as you sit here today, we've taken the 24 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And so my questionto you is,
25 adoption cycle out of the equation, as | understand it, 25 inthe context of policies regarding textbook
Page 103 Page 105

1 interms of your understanding of how 60119 with its 1 avalilability, assume for amoment that empirical

2 associated public attention and financing might have 2 evidenceisbrought to your attention that indicates

3 resulted in an improvement of the textbook issues? 3 that there are significant issues il with the

4 A. Whotook the adoption cycle out? 4 availability of textbooks or instructional materialsto

5 Q. Ithinkyoujustdid. 5 gudents, assumethat.

6 MR. VIRJEE: Misgtates histestimony. 6 A. "Significant issues'?

7 MR. SEFERIAN: Misstates his testimony. 7 Q. Yes Of the sort described with respect to

8 THE WITNESS: No, the adoption cycleisvery 8 LAUSD in Exhibits 235 and 236.

9 important to the decisions of loca districts and to the 9 MR. VIRJEE: There's been no indication that
10 provisions of 60119, because 60119 requires you to have 10 hesread or has any knowledge about what happened at
11 materiasaigned to the standards. Excuse me, the 11 LAUSD asdescribed in 235 and 236. Youve asked him
12 frameworks. Theframeworks are part of the cycle. If 12 gpecificaly about what he said in those, Michael, so
13 you connect 60119 to the development of frameworks and 13 that's not very fair.
14 adoption schedule, which are all related, then the cycle 14 MR. JACOBS: He madeit clear that he read them
15 does make adifference asto whether yourein 15 athetime.
16 compliance with 60119. 16 MR. VIRJEE: No, hedidn't makeit clear. He
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mgoing to ask you this 17 said that he had read things at the time. He didn't say
18 directly again without dl the ancillary stuff about the 18 heread these articles. | just want to make sure the
19 trid, but that's the context. Y ou understand why I'm 19 recordisclear.
20 asking this question, | need to know what you might 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'll goback. Didyouread
21 testify to next fall. 21 Exhibit 236 at approximately the time it came out?
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
23 speculation. 23 Lacksfoundation. If you remember.
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isityour opinion, sir, that 24 THE WITNESS: | remember reading stuff like
25 the combination of factors that you have been pointing 25 this. My guessis| probably read it.
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MR. VIRJEE: We don't want you to guess or
speculate. He's asking did you read it at that time.

THE WITNESS: | cannot tell you for sure | read
it.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you recal reading articles
about textbooks shortagesin LAUSD?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.

THEWITNESS: Yes.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou know generdly what's
being described in these articles, that students are
going without texts, that they, following the principles
that you've set out in your comments, should have. So,
for example --

MR. VIRJEE: Let'slet therecord reflect is
that what he's done is he's looked at the section of the
exhibit that you've asked him to look at, there's been
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the article.

MR. JACOBS: We'reon for 3:00 with the
discovery master.

MR. VIRJEE: If you want to ask him about
whether or not students have textbooks, then ask him the
question. That'sfine. But it'sunfair to ask him
about the content of an article that he hasn't read. If
you want himto read it, that's fine.

MR. JORDAN: Might | suggest that now might be
agood time to break for lunch.

MR. JACOBS: Let'sjust finish up thisline of
guestioning.

MR. SEFERIAN: There's no question pending,
Mr. Mockler.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What problem do these articles
describe from the standpoint of the students' education?

17 noindication that he's read these articles to know what 17 MR. VIRJEE: The articles spesk for themselves.
18 they contain. If you want him to do that, we're happy 18 Heésasking you totell himwhat the articlessay. You
19 todothat, but he hasn't done that so far. 19 better read them.
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: You understand that that's 20 THE WITNESS: | haven't read the articles as
21 what's being reported on, correct, that students don't 21 theysit.
22 have textbooks they should have? 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sir,itisyour understanding
23 A. Thegenerd tenor of thisreport, of this 23 that those articles described a problem of students not
24  articleas| understand it isthat the reporters 24 receiving textbooks that, in the view of the reporters,
25 discovered some placesin LA Unified, and perhaps other 25 the students should have, yes?
Page 107 Page 109

1 places, other digtricts in which students did not have, 1 MR. JORDAN: Cadlsfor hearsay.

2 intheview of the reporters, appropriate instructional 2 MR. SEFERIAN: The articles speaks for

3 materidsin 1997. 3 themsdves. Hejust said he hasn't read the articles.

4 Q. And 2000, right, sir? 4 | don't know how he can answer that.

5 MR. VIRJEE: He€slooking at -- 5 THE WITNESS: My impression?

6 THE WITNESS: I'mon'97. | don't know about 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That'saconcern of

7 2000. 7 policymakers, correct, that students should have

8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Takealook at 235. 8 aufficient textbooks and instructional materiasto

9 A. I'venotreadthat article, but | might have 9 learnthe curriculum?
10 readit at thetime. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 MR. VIRJEE: What's your question, Michael? 11 to"sufficient. Cdlsfor speculation asto what might
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Sol needto know, sir, what 12 be of concern to somebody.
13 your opinion is on the following question: Assume that 13 THE WITNESS: Do you mean textbooks,
14 empirica evidenceis brought to your attention, that 14 instructional materials, instructional resourcesin a
15 the problem described in these articles -- 15 broad sense? | am having trouble with your definition.
16 MR. VIRJEE: Let's st forth the fact that he 16 MR. JACOBS: | mean in your sense.
17 hasn't read the articles so he doesn't know what the 17 THE WITNESS: Becauseit could be some kids do
18 aticlesdescribe. Soif you want to describe aproblem 18 different things. you know, you haveaP.E. class, a
19 for him, that'sfine. But he hasn't read the article. 19 group of special ed kids, so it's different. It's not
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sir, what problem do these 20 awaysjust abook.
21 articles describe? 21 MR. JACOBS: | understand that.
22 MR. VIRJEE: Generadly? 22 THEWITNESS: Soinabroad sensethe
23 MR. JACOBS:. Hejud stated it, Fram. Hejust 23 policymakers are concerned that students and teachers
24 told me what problem the articles describe. 24 have appropriate instructional resources, broadly
25 MR. VIRJEE: Hejust told you he hasn't read 25 sated, to carry out the curriculum chosen.
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou would agree with me,
sir, that whether that is, in fact, in placeis
potentially subject to empiricd verification?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous
asto "empirical verification."

THE WITNESS: Theoreticaly there are waysto
quantify that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat doyou haveinmindin
terms of the ways to quantify that?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Cadlsfor an expert opinion.

THE WITNESS: | don't haveawaytodoit. I'm
sure there are lots of ways, but | don't know any
particular way.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: You don't have aparticular way
in mind as you sit here today?

A.  Wadl, | think the policy of the State has been

quite powerful. There are other things one might do, |
suppose. Theresalist of them. | don't havea

particular solution that's beyond where we are now.

Q. I'mtaking about testing whether students have

the access to instructional materids that the policies
areamed to provide. That empirical questioninthe

field istestable, isnot it?
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those conditions had lied on their requirements under
60119.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. But doesn't the school
simply -- doesn't the school district smply certify
whether they had the hearing or not, sir?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an
inadmissible opinion. Incomplete and improper
hypothetical.

THE WITNESS: Statute goes well beyond what you
just said.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Whoislyingtowhom then? |
don't quite understand.

A. Stauterequirestheloca boardin apublic
hearing to assert, to make afinding that each student
has available textbooks or other instructional meterials
in subjects consistent with the State Board adoption
cycle, which has to do with their recency, that is, how
old arethey. And that if they do not make -- if they
make that finding, they have asserted that each kid does
have that available. If they do not make that finding,
then they are directed to make such a condition within
two years of that finding.

Q. And doesthe -- so what would bethelieinthe
latter case?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor
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MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous
asto "testable.”

THE WITNESS: Conceptually you could do
anything from monitoring every class every day to
looking at the audit provisions of 60119 and presuming
the districts do not lie.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou could also do asurvey,
correct, sir?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: Y ou may do many things, including
asurvey.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: So conceivably asurvey might
come to your attention which indicated that students do
not have access to instructional resources of the type
you've described, and that that information is that the
problem is sufficient in magnitude that you, as someone
concerned with educational policy, concludesit's till
aserious policy concern, correct? Y ou can imagine that
situation arising?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Incomplete hypothetica.

THEWITNESS: If that arrived, | would have to
then presume that the school district in which you found
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speculaion. Incomplete hypothetical question.

THE WITNESS: If you assert a condition exists
and it does not exist, that would be dishonest.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: But thelatter case, sir, was
we don't have enough, but we're going to develop
policiesto get there?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates his
testimony.

THE WITNESS: Statute doesn't say make
policies.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It saysget there?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The statute speaks for
itself.

MR. JORDAN: Also cdlsfor alega conclusion.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Correct?
A. My understanding of the statute is they must be
there within two years of anegative find.
Q.  Andyou don't know how many districts have made
negative findings, you collectively don't know, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: What do you mean "you
collectively'?

MR. JACOBS: Y ou the State, you the State Board
of Education.

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question.
Cdlsfor speculation.
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1 THE WITNESS: | have seen no thorough 1 isaproblem with the availability of instructional
2 information on that subject. 2 materidsto students, broadly construed, and you as a
3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Soyourviewisonewaytoknow | 3 policymaker look at that data and you say to yoursdf,
4 whether thisis till aserious problem as of 2002 is 4 if that dataistrue, we still have a serious problem
5 what the latest set of findingsis? If they're 5 with textbook availability in the -- with instructional
6 overwhemingly positive findings on this hearing 6 materia availability in the state of Cdifornia.
7 requirement, you'd say that's one source of -- one 7 That'sthe circumstance. Okay?
8 potential source of data about what's really happening 8 Are you with me on the definition of "the
9 inthefield; isthat correct? 9 circumstance'?
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 10 A.  Okay.
11 asto"this" and asto "serious problem.” 11 Q. Sodata, conclusion by you.
12 MR. VIRJEE: Alsoincomplete hypothetical and 12 MR. VIRJEE: And so| don't have to make the
13 callsfor speculation. 13 objection every time on circumstance, I'll just object
14 THE WITNESS: What do you mean? Y ou mean if 14 tothe definition of circumstance as vague and ambiguous
15 youlooked at -- what do you mean? 15 asto"availability", and assumesthat he's a policy
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | think what you said was if 16 maker, and it's an incomplete hypothetical. Now |
17 thisempirical evidencethat | described which was not 17 won't haveto say that every time.
18 based on 60119 findings were brought to your attention, 18 MR. JACOBS: Good.
19 youwould be-- I think what you were implying was you 19 Q. Now, let me ask the question. If "the
20 would be skeptical about that -- 20 circumstance' occurs, would it be your opinion that --
21 A. Excusemejust one second. 21 and it occurs before September 23rd, 2002 -- so we just
22 Q. --youwould be skeptical about that because 22 added another condition, the circumstances, and it
23 that would suggest that the districts had been dishonest 23 occurs before 2002, September 23rd -- would it be your
24 in complying with 60119, correct? 24 opinion that nonetheless the existing statutory
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Could you read back the 25 provisions and the existing policies of the State Board
Page 115 Page 117
1 question, please. 1 of Education with respect to their implementation should
2 (Record read.) 2 begiven moretime to be implemented before concluding
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates his 3 that they should be revised?
4 testimony. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdls for 5 Incomplete hypothetical.
6 speculation. Incomplete and improper hypothetical 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
7 question. 7 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an inadmissible opinion.
8 THE WITNESS: Can you try that question a 8 THE WITNESS: Y oud have to quantify your
9 little more specifically? 9 presumption for me to respond to the question.
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What part of it areyou having | 10 If there were 8,000 schools out there,
11 troublewith, sir? 11 hypothetically, and you found that condition to exist in
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin 12 eight, that would be one view. If you founditin
13 evidence 13 5,000, that would be another view. So you'd haveto --
14 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: What part are you having 14 you can't smply make afinding about a statewide policy
15 troublewith? 15 for which thereis what we would cdl an Aunt Tilly
16 A. If your question is -- | don't understand what 16 circumstance.
17 youwant meto tell you. You'resetting up a 17 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. A what?
18 circumstance. 18 A.  AuntTilly circumstance. Aunt Tillyis
19 Q. Yeah, I'msetting up acircumstance. 19 everybody has an Aunt Tilly in some school, and
20 A.  What'sthe-- the circumstance is what? 20 something is happening good or bad in any schoal in
21 Q. Letmejustsay it once sowell haveit onthe 21 Cdiforniaon every hour in every day. So you would
22 table, and then well refer to it as "the circumstance.” 22 haveto have awhole different evidential circumstance
23 Okay? Areyou with me, the circumstance? 23 for meto make a comment on what a policy -- the second
24 The circumstance, sir, isthat empirical data 24 thing you would have to have is the nature of the
25 isbrought to your attention that indicates that there 25 improvement. If youwere at your first look out there
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1 and you found 20 percent had and 80 percent had not, and 1 thereisaso concernthat school digtricts are not

2 threeyearslater you had 80 percent had and 20 percent 2  getting those materids into the hands of the teachers.

3 had nat, | would say the policy is working, even though 3 Do you seethat?

4 for 20 percent it clearly had not. So that's the only 4 A. Right.

5 way| canview that in afactua way. 5 Q. Hrsofall, doesthat capture the substance

6 Q. Andmyfalow-up questionis, if wewereto do 6 of your comment?

7 suchastudy in 2002, we really wouldn't have a-- to 7 A.  Wédl, narrowly.

8 thebest of your knowledge, wouldn't have abasisin 8 Q. Andwhat doyou mean?

9 datafor looking backward at the availability of 9 A. Wadl, AB 466 isthe professiona devel opment
10 instructional resourcesto students, correct? 10 hill. It wasonthe agenda. It wasaproposa by the
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor 11 governor to provide reading and math training, and in
12 gpeculation. Incomplete and improper hypothetical 12 that bill there was a provision saying if you got the
13 question. Lacks foundation. 13 training, then you had to be trained on the
14 THE WITNESS: One data point is not atrend. 14 standards-based instructional materids, and that was
15 It would cause adifferent form of andysis. 15 theessence of thehill.

16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: But the answer to my question 16 Therée's two kinds of issues here, oneisyou
17 iscorrect, yes? 17 can haveingructional materials, but are they adopted
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 18 subsequent to standards. So this says we only adopted
19 THE WITNESS: Answer to which question? 19 materialsin January of ‘01 that were standards based.
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: We don' have the basis for -- 20 Q. Isthatthebasisfor the concern that you
21 A.  Alongitudina study with one point in data, 21  expressed?
22 that'scorrect. 22 MR. VIRJEE: Which concern?
23 Q. Letmebeclear. We cannot do -- based on the 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Or that you reported on?
24 information you have, there's no data, looking backward, 24 MR. VIRJEE: The oneyou just read?
25 toalow usto do alongitudinal study with more than 25 MR. JACOBS: Yesh.

Page 119 Page 121

1 onedatapoint? 1 THE WITNESS: Y eah, the concern was that

2 A. Correct. 2 because we had just adopted new standards-based

3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 3 materidsthat those new materias that were adopted in

4 MR. JACOBS. Now we can break. 4 January -- were talking about, what, two, three months

5 (Lunch recesstaken.) 5 later -- that what materials were the teachers going to

6 (Exhibit SAD-237 was marked.) 6 betrained on? And the law, given on math materials,

7 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Mr. Mockler, I'd liketo ask 7 doesn't haveto be standards based, but this law said,

8 you about some State Board of Education meeting minutes 8 no, you had to be trained on standards-based materials.

9 marked as Exhibit 237, the minutes from April 12th, 9 And for elementary schools that was materials adopted by
10 2001. Takeamoment, look a item 18. I'm going to ask 10 theBoard.

11 you about your comment in the second paragraph of item 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you said he stated that
12 18. 12 thereisaneed for students to have standards-based
13 A 214? 13 ingtructional materias, was that with reference to your
14 MR. SEFERIAN: This paragraph. 14 understanding what the statute was going to require?
15 MR. JACOBS: No, I'm sorry on the next page, 15 A.  Yes

16 second paragraph. 16 Q. Andthe concern that you expressed was solely
17 THE WITNESS: Okay. Right. 17 reatedtotiming?

18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doesthe statement -- let's 18 A. Itwasrdated -- it was aquestion about what
19 just set the stage, Mrs. Joseph inquired about the 19 didthe statute do. | responded to questions about the
20 requirement that schools have state-adopted 20 satute.

21 ingtructional materialsin order to receive funding for 21 Q. Butthenyou sadthere'sasoaconcern. Do
22  reading and mathematics, professional development under 22  you seethat?

23 AB 466. Thenit goesonto say that is till being 23 A. Right, because-- you havetoputitin

24 discussed. He stated that there is a need for students 24 context.

25 to have standards-based instructiond materias, and 25 Q. That'smy question.
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A.  Therésno way that anybody would have
materiasin April of '01 that were adopted in January.
Q.  That'smy guestion, was that the only issue you
were addressing in terms of why the materials werent in
the hands of teachers, that is, the timing issue?
A. | wasaddressingit, yes. But with respect to
466, it was under legidative review, was passed and
wasn't effective until this January, so you have to put
that in some time context.

So she asked about the bill and does -- if
you're going to be trained on math, are you going to
be -- and reading, what are the teachers are going to be
trained on, old materials or new materials? And we said
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lines of Mr. -- that high schools are the toughest
schools to reform in that meeting?

A. Yes.
Q. Andwhat did you mean by that?
A. | mean that the measurable achievement

improvement in high schools over time has shown -- been
the most resistance to improvement.

Q. Didyou havein mind some particular dataon

that front?

A.  No,just achievement datathat we have seenin

the STAR and the standards programs.

Q.  Anddoyou havein mind now or did you havein
mind then instances of successful reform of high schools

14 the hill was being designed then. The way the bill was 14  asyou meant reformed in that sentence?
15 designed at that point, what it said in the bill was 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
16 tha we did have to have new standards-based materids 16 to"instances."
17 if you were going to receive the training. 17 Y ou're asking for specific schools?
18 Q. And, again, just to pin this down, the only 18 MR. JACOBS: No, or the characteristics of such
19 badisfor the concern that you expressed at the meeting 19 schools.
20 regarding whether school districts were getting those, 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
21 bracket, standards-based, close bracket, materials into 21 Lacksfoundation.
22 the hands of teachers was a concern about the recency of | 22 THE WITNESS: No, thiswas about an incentive
23 the adoption of the standards-based materids 23 program, and the question was regarding the achievement
24 themsdves, right? 24 growth in high schools compared to other schools.
25 MR. JORDAN: Asked and answered. 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And thenyou saidtheway to
Page 123 Page 125
1 THEWITNESS:. Yeah. 1 solvethisisnot to lower the bar, but to get the
2 (Exhibit SAD-238 was marked.) 2 message out that high schools will be held accountable.
3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I've marked as Exhibit 238 3 It's reported that you said that. Did you say
4 minutes from the Cdifornia State Board of Education 4 that inwords or substance?
5 medting of November 7th and 8, actualy, draft minutes 5 A.  Yes
6 tobeprecise of 2001. And | want to -- I'm going to 6 Q. Whatdidyoumean by getting the message out?
7 beasking you about discussion on page 9, 10, 11 and 7 A. Theitemwasabout what level of growth was
8 then 12 to start out with. 8 required to receive a specid incentive award. Some
9 MR. VIRJEE: Would you like him to read those 9 suggested that we were requiring too much growth in high
10 pages? 10 schoolsfor them to get awards, and one way to change
11 MR. JACOBS: Yes, please. 11 that wasto lower your growth target for high schools.
12 THE WITNESS: All of those pages, or gart from | 12 That comment was saying thet it would be better to tell
13 somewhere? 13 the high schools, no, you have the same target as
14 MR. JACOBS: I'm going to start with your 14 elementary and middle schools.
15 comment about -- it's reported you said, Mr. Mockler 15 Q. Andwiththeincentive program being avehicle
16 commented that high schools are the toughest schoolsto | 16  for getting the message out?
17 reform. 17 A. Yes
18 MR. VIRJEE: Youaeon page9. 18 Q. Andthentwo paragraphs after that you state --
19 MR. JACOBS: Actualy, that's on page 10. Item 19 you're reported as having said that the Board is
20 17 sartson 9. | wanted you to have the background. 20 interested in sustained systemic improvement in academic
21 THE WITNESS: | got you. 21 achievement.
22 MR. VIRJEE: Shdl wejust teakethemoneat a 22 Did you say that in words or substance?
23 time and then he can read them as you go? 23 A.  Yes
24 MR. JACOBS: Okay. 24 Q.  What did you mean by "systemic improvement"?
25 Q. Frgofal, did you say something dong the 25 MR. VIRJEE: With respect to academic

32 (Pages 122 to 125)



O©CO~NOOOIT,WNPEF

NNONNNN R R R R R R R
ORWNRPOOONOURWNRO

Page 126

achievement?

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inthis context what did you
mean by it?

A. Inthiscontext | mean that al groups or
subgroups make academic progress toward a set standard
on a systematic basis, not a one-time pop up and down.
Q. Andthat adso answers the question then what
you meant by "sustained" in that context?

A.  Systemic would be-- in my view is all subjects
measured. Systemic sustained would be over time, s0
both.

Q. And by "academic achievement” here, did you
have any particular metric of academic achievement in
mind, or were you commenting more generaly?

A.  Stae STAR system measured over time.

Q. Theninitem 18, | want you to take alook at
that and your comments.

A.  Therdsanumber of them.

Q.  Whydon't you take alook at the whole item so
you can see the context.

A. Yes

Q. First of dl AB 961, isthat the statute that
enacted the high priority schools grant program?

A. Yes

Q.  And by thetime of this discussion, that had
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didn't choose to apply because they felt they could do
better without it.
Q. Andthelegidativeintentin AB 961 wasto
make the decision not to apply on behalf of an eligible
school amatter of a noticed hearing to the school
districts; isthat right?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
speculation. Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: It's my understanding 961 has
that effect.
Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And then more district
responsibility. Do you have an understanding what she
meant by more district responsibility?

MR. VIRJEE: Callsfor speculation. Lacks
foundation.

If you understood what Ms. Harris --

THE WITNESS: | don't understand what
Ms. Harris meant.
Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Interms of the statute, do you
have an opinion whether it provides for more district
responsibility?
A. Y es, in numerous places it states the
district's responsibility clearer than 11/USP, and it
also creates a new sanction in which the superintendent
and the State Board could put the district under an
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been passed into law, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. AndMs. Harrisisreported as having said,

there is more district responsibility under AB 961 and a
more public spotlight.

Do you see that?

A. Yes.
Q. Did you understand -- do you know what she
meant by "a more public spotlight"?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
speculation.

MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "more
public spotlight.”

THE WITNESS: Not specificaly, only 961 is
more money, and there's no other -- there's nothing
particularly otherwise different about it.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And then with respect to more
district responsibility --

A. Let me check that. 961 aso has aprovision

that requires the local boards who did not apply to have
apublic hearing saying why not. There are a couple of
things like that. So that's more of a public spotlight.

So some districts -- schoolsin alower decile it didn't
apply, and the legislative intent was that if they don't
wish to apply for whatever reason -- some districts
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obligation to improve schools that didn't meet target
rather than simply taking them over. Soit'san
additional sanction, and based on the -- the local
board's responsibilities.
Q.  Andtherequirement -- the provisions that you
just referred to apply to al schoolsin the 11/USP
program, or only schools that are receiving high
priority schools grants?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The statute speaks for
itsdlf. Callsfor alega conclusion.

THE WITNESS: Are you taking about the
provision of sanctioning, having adistrict take action?

MR. JACOBS: Y es, those provisions.

THE WITNESS: My understanding isit appliesto
al 11/USPs.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andtheninthenext paragraph
you speak about current I1/USP versus -- | takeit you
were contrasting the current law with the sanctioned
provision of AB 9617
A.  Whereisthat?
Q.  Bottom paragraph.
A. | wasspeaking of the option to require the
district to take certain actions.
Q.  Whenyou say "require the district to take
certain actions," what's your understanding of the range
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1 of actionsthat the districts can be required to take? 1 September?
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
3 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "range of 3 Lacksfoundation. Also assumes facts.
4 action." Andaso cdlsfor alega conclusion. 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to the extent it calls
5 THE WITNESS: | was speaking only to the 5 for privileged communications, attorney/client, officia
6 genera provisonsof 961, which unlike previous 1/USP 6 information privileges.
7 laws, alowed the Board to -- the superintendent and the 7 THE WITNESS: Weve received areport from the
8 Board to rather than take over a school, toimpose a 8 superintendent. Superintendent's hired a staff person
9 duty onthedistrict to take certain actions. 9 tolook at the circumstance. Well not know how many
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddoyou havean 10 schoolsareinvolved until we get the results of the
11 understanding of what the -- what the kinds of actions 11 testsin November.
12 that the district can be directed to undertake are? 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: In?
13 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 13 A.  September, November. Whenever we post the API.
14 THE WITNESS: Fully, no. Someyou haveto 14 Q. Sothelast round of the APl is not the
15 gpeculate. It's pretty vague in the law. 15 decisive onefor that cohort, there's one moreround, is
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sohow would you characterize 16 that what you're saying?
17 thekind of authority that has been made available to 17 A. Thenextroundisthethird.
18 the superintendent and the Board under 961 in terms of 18 Q. Andwhenwill -- thetest for that is
19 their directive powers over school districts? 19 administered when?
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cadllsfor an 20 A. Depending onyour schedule, somewhere around
21 inadmissiblelega opinion. 21 May of 2002.
22 THE WITNESS: | would simply say that for 22 Q. So,toyour knowledge, has there been any
23 particular schoolswho did not meet particular targets, 23 discussions about the specific steps the superintendent
24 the Board and the superintendent have authority to 24 and the Board will betaking from the trigger date for
25 ingst that the digtrict take particular action for that 25 taking action with respect to the first cohort?
Page 131 Page 133
1 school. 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andtheparticularsare? 2 evidence. Cdllsfor speculation.
3 A.  Generd. Vague 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
4 Q. Whenyouwerereferring to taking over schools 4 for privileged communications.
5 next September, you were referring to the date by which 5 THE WITNESS: There's an advisory group that
6 thefirst cohort of 11/USP schools would be up for 6 asdststhe superintendent on this metter. They've
7 takeover under the existing program? 7 provided certain information to the Board regarding
8 A. Correct. 8 modding, and that's all we've gotten so far.
9 Q. Anddo you have any current understanding of 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By"modding," what do you
10 the number of schools that are subject to the -- strike 10 mean?
11 that. 11 A.  Ifthiswas-- if this section had beenin
12 Under AB 961 there's till the authority to 12 effect in aprevious year, would there be -- what's the
13 actually take over specific schools, correct? 13 likdlihood of how many schools being in what category,
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an 14 and it was speculative.
15 inadmissiblelegal opinion. 15 Q. Itwasmostly aimed a gauging the size of the
16 MR. VIRJEE: Callsfor speculation. 16 group of schools that would have been subject to, under
17 THE WITNESS: My understanding of 961 isthat 17 theold law, takeover?
18 under 961's conditions that were existing before, they 18 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou're asking what the modeling
19 il exist with respect to taking over, that the first 19 showed?
20 cohort could till be taken over a the request of the 20 MR. JACOBS: What it was directed to.
21 superintendent. Also the additional sanction of a 21 Q. Woas it directed to size issues, size of the
22 didtrict intervention was available. 22 group?
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What information do you have 23 A, Yes
24 about the current planning in the Department or at the 24 Q. Anditdidn'tgointo--
25 State Board for the -- for the first cohort come next 25 A. Criteria, went into criteria
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1 Q I'msorry? 1 A. No
2 A. Wenttintocriteria 2 Q. Intermsof the duties that were described,
3 Q. Criteriafor what? 3 what was set forth?
4 A. TheBoard hasnot adopted this. Thisisjust 4 A. Determining the cohort, determining how to
5 information that cameto the Board. | don't have any 5 divide schoadlsinto those categories required by law,
6 particular knowledgein front of me. 6 making decisions about levels of sanctions. Again, in
7 Q. Areyouonthat advisory board? 7 the gtatute it's the duty of the superintendent to
8 A. No 8 propose such. The Board only acts upon the
9 Q. Now, aretherecother placesin the state 9 recommendeation of the superintendent.
10 government other than the Department where, to your 10 Q.  Soyour understanding of the mechanics here
11 knowledge, thisissueis being addressed from the 11 will bethat asto schools individualy or by group the
12 planning standpoint? 12 superintendent will propose action to the Board, and
13 MR. VIRJEE: Again, weretalking about the 13 thenthe Board will vote yea or nay on that proposal?
14 issue of asanction for the first cohort under the 14 A.  That'smy understanding.
15 [I/UsP? 15 Q. Anddo you have an opinion based on your
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let mesmplifythis. Itisa | 16 knowledge and experience about how the Board and the
17 far comment. Theissue my questionsare addressedto | 17 Department of Education should go about deciding what to
18 isthat thefirst cohort will come due for some sort of 18 do with respect to schools when the event of remedial
19 remedid action, right? 19 action comes?
20 A. Iftheydo not meet their growth targets. 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
21 Q. Andsolet'sjust cdl that the event of 21 Lacksfoundation as to any experience that he may have
22 remedid action for shorthand. 22 inthisarea, and callsfor speculation and alega
23 What kind of planning is underway elsawherein 23 conclusion.
24 the gtate, aside from CDE, for what to ded -- what to 24 THEWITNESS: Yes.
25 dointhe event -- when the event of remedid action 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion?
Page 135 Page 137
1 comes? 1 A | believe the question was opinions.
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 2 Q.  What are your opinions?
3 Lacksfoundation. 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
4 THE WITNESS: That's the duty of the 4 THE WITNESS: It's going to be a difficult task
5 superintendent. Therée's no other agency that | know of. 5 which the Board will have to engage in.
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou participated in any 6 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: That's one opinion. You said
7 discussions about what kind of capacity building is 7 thereareplural.
8 going to have to take place at the CDE in order to 8 A. It's going to be difficult to implement given
9 implement the remedial action provisions of the I1/USP 9 the state of the law.
10 programor AB 9617 10 Q. And]I think you commented alittle bit on that
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 11 inthe-- commented on one aspect that's stated in the
12 asto “capacity building." Object to the extent it 12 law in the next paragraph. But what are you referring
13 cdlsfor privileged communications. 13 to now in the way that the program is statutorily
14 THE WITNESS: What do you mean by “capacity"? 14 configured?
15 MR. JACOBS: | mean by the kinds of resources 15 A.  Wadl, you have to identify the schools first,
16 that will be necessary in order to actually take either 16 and then you have to make decisions regarding the
17 sanctions or takeover steps. 17 relative progress, then you have to determine what kind
18 THEWITNESS: In avague way this discussion 18 of asanction would provide improvement, and then you
19 has been brought up and talked about in front of the 19 haveto have the ability to implement that sanction.
20 Board, but | don't have any particular information. 20 Those aredl things never done before. When the State
21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: There have been Board 21 does somethingit's never done before, it's very
22 discussionson this? 22 complicated and likely to do harm.
23 A.  Yesah, by the Department. The Department 23 Q. S0 let's start with the analysis of that
24 brought forth just what the duties were going to be. 24 problem. Areyou aware of any other states that have a
25 Q. Wasthereany action requested? 25 similar kind of -- analogous kind of system?
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A. No.
Q. Areyouaware of any studies that have been
conducted to try to guide policymakers as they approach
the challenge that you just outlined?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Calls for speculation.

THE WITNESS: Only vaguely, and not by name.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Whoareyou --
A. | have some sense that there's been articles
about thisin newspapers and magazines. | don't have
any direct citation for you.
Q. Andit'sapproaching the end of January 2002.

Do you have in mind atimetable how this challengeis
going to be planned for over the coming months?

MR. VIRJEE: Does he personaly?

MR. JACOBS:. Yes.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Relevancy. And dso
lacks foundation and calls for an expert opinion.

THEWITNESS: Our understanding is that the
special deputy hired by the superintendent to engagein
this processisworking onit. We don't have any
specific information of his success thusfar.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Wasthat the staff person you
were referring to before that had been hired?
A. Yes
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[1/USP, then do you have to have another one, or which
ones do you have to do with the externd evauator. |Is
it now opened up to al 11/USP, or just the low deciles.
The law, it's got confused.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It'stheinterplay between the
evaluator and the --

A.  Yeah, andtherapid drafting of legidature.

Go off therecord, I'd call it oppy. But onthe

record it'sjust --

Q. Thenit says, Ms. Harris added that adequate
staffing isan issue.

Do you understand at that time that she was
referring to staffing in the Department to carry out the
Department's duties?

A. Yes

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation
astowhat Ms. Harris might have been referring to.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And then Superintendent Eastin
commented that if the necessary positions are released

by December 10, the Department would have plans for the
Board in January. If not, the plans would not be before

the Board until February.

And by plansthey're -- it looks from the
context here like she was referring to the plans being
submitted by the schools. Isthat your understanding?
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Q. Whoisthat?

A.  Hesrightinhere. Richard Whitmore,

Q. Next paragraph, top of page 11, Mr. Mockler
added that a legidative solution to this problem is
being sought.

And | take it the problem is the -- whether you
had to use externd evaluators or could use internal
evaluators; is that right?

A.  Yes
Q.  Anddo you know the current status of the
legidative solution that is being sought?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Assumesit currently is still being sought.
Unless you're asking was there any legidative solution
after November 8.

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to the extent it cdls
for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: AB 961 has substantia technical
problems, and there are many interpretations. And the
legidature wrote aletter in to the journal suggesting
some changes to clarify the laws. Now, without a proper
amendment it pretty near isimpossible to administer
technically, not asto itsintent. That's what they're
talking about there.

If you use an external evauator in just

OCoO~NOOTA, WN P

NNNNNRPEPRRRRRERRR
RONRPOQOWONOURNWNRO

25

Page 141
MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
speculation.
THE WITNESS: | understood she was talking
about the new 961 plans.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And by referring to the
necessary positions, was she referring, as you
understood it, to the positions needed in the Department
to administer this program?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
speculation.

THE WITNESS: Yes.
Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And do you know whether the
positions had been released?
A. Yes.
Q.  Werethey released by December 10th?
A. | don't know about the date. Y es.
Q. Do you know what the scheduleis for having the
plans before the Board? Did that occur or will that
occur soon?
A.  Thegovernor has proposed that the program be
deferred and has asked the legislature to defer it to
July 1.
Q.  Andby "the program" now you're referring to
what plan?
A. 96l
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Q. Andsoisthis part of the budget adjustment?
A. Yes
Q.  Thenyou discussed relationship between [1/USP
and the federa program in the third paragraph. Do you
seethat?
A.  Wherel commented?
Q. ItsaysMr. Mockler noted. Y ou weretaking
about the lower five deciles versus the lowest two
deciles. And then you said, according to these minutes
the federal program has different requirements than the
State programs.
A. Yes
Q. Doyouseethat?
A. Yes
Q. Didyou spesk to that issue of the differences
between the federd and state program requirements at
that meeting?
A. Yes

MR. VIRJEE: By "speak to," do you mean did he
identify that there were differences?

THEWITNESS: | identified -- | asserted that
there were differences.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By federd program, what were
you referring to?
A.  Comprehensive school reform demonstration
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A. Yes

Q. And arethose anong the challenges the -- were
you referring there to challenges the State would face
if it had to do atakeover or impose sanctions?

A. No.

Q.  Wha wereyou referring to?

A.  Theprovisonsof 961 that, in shorthand,
requires those issues to be considered in your plan.

Q. Soyousad-- according to the minutes, you
said aset of criteriamust be considered.

Who had to do the considering there as you use
the words "must be considered?' Who were you addressing
yourself to?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Cdlsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: Discussions about regulations.
We're talking about the provisions of 961. 961 has four
or five core areas that the local district must address
asto how to. Those plansthat are reviewed by the
superintendent, and then recommended to the Board. The
superintendent's duty and the Board's duty is to say,
have they been covered.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And asyou understand it --
A.  It'sshorthand for thelaw. Thelaw ismuch
more complicated than that wording.
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program. Title 1 preexisting to the new law, federa
law.

Q.  Meaning the new Leave No Child Behind act -- No
Child Left Behind Act?

A.  (Witnessnods head.)

Q. Isthatayes?

A. Yes

Q.  Sothendownin the second to last paragraph
there's acomment about the hill language being cleaned
up in January. Ms. Harris replied that the Department
does not plan to draft regulations until after the hill

language is cleaned up in January.
Do you seethat?
A. Yes
Q. Andwasthat the kind of cleanup you were

referring to earlier when you were referring to the
letter from the legidature?
A.  Correct.
Q. Andthenyou said, regulations are needed. A
set of criteriamust be consider, including: How are
the schools going to get qudlified teachers for their
students; how will teachers be trained; how will schools
get standards-based instructiond materialsto all
students. s the school safe.

Do you seethat?
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Q. In terms of the review that is required, asyou
understand the way this will be rolled out or should be
rolled out, will the plans be looked at to determine
whether, for example, with respect to getting qualified
teachers for their students, whether thereis, in fact,
aredligtic plan for doing that as opposed to merely --
or will it simply look at whether thereis a plan at

al?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also vague and ambiguous asto
"redistic.”

THE WITNESS: I'd refer you to the law. The
law gives great latitude to the districts, gives avery
short time to the State, so they must be addressed. We
review, are they addressed.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: So when you were referring to
regulations, were you referring to regulations

governing, among other things, the format of the
application forms?

A. Partially. Regulations, bills has alot of
provisions. The only time you need regulationsis if

the statute needs clarification. And depending on what
the amended -- amendment corrections are, you'll need a
lot or afew regulations.

Q. | see. And with respect to the criteria that
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1 hadto beconsdered that you listed here -- 1 THE WITNESS: Do you mean report to the Board?
2 A. Thosearein statute and would not have to be 2 What do you mean?
3 regulated. | don't think so. They may. | don't know. 3 MR. JACOBS: | guessthat'sfair.
4 Q. Soyouwerentlinking inyour comments the 4 Q. Item19isaninformational report of the
5 need for regulations with the set of criteriathat must 5 awardsintervention subcommittee, correct?
6 beconsdered? 6 A Yes
7 A. Not necessarily. 7 Q. Havetherebeenany other informationa reports
8 Q. Isoneof thedifferences between AB 961 and 8 tothe State Board of Education since?
9 1lI/USP the -- maybe thisisimplicit in what you said 9 A. Nottomyrecollection. | don't believe so.
10 before. 10 Y ou mean subsequent?
11 Inthe I1/USP program it's very school-focused, 11 Q. Correct. When it usestheword
12 in AB 961 theré's afocus on actions the district must 12 ‘“informational," are there other kinds of reporting
13 taketo correct school positions? 13 itemson the agenda of a subcommittee like the awards
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor alega 14  intervention subcommittee?
15 concluson. The statute speaks for itself. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
16 MR. JORDAN: Misstateswhat he said earlier. 16 Lacksfoundation.
17 THEWITNESS: | think the problemwith961is | 17 THE WITNESS: Sometimes they ask for action, in
18 that it attempts to subsume 11/USP and then add. So 18 which caseit would be labeled action.
19 your question has amultiple nature and has to do with 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And havethere been any such --
20 theimplementation problem. Becausethe bill has 20 A, |-
21 technicd errors, it's hard to tell you what it does. | 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Let him finish the question.
22 was spesking generaly to what the Board was goingto | 22 Q.  BY MR.JACOBS: Havethere been any suchitems
23 haveto gpprove. 23 from the awards intervention subcommittee subsequent to
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inthell/USP programthe 24 thisinformational report?
25 externa evaluatorslook closdly at the schools and 25 MR. VIRJEE: Such items being items asking for
Page 147 Page 149
1 determine what the barriers are to learning, correct? 1 action?
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 2 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
3 THE WITNESS: I'd say that's incorrect. 3 THE WITNESS: Y ou mean action?
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How would you characterize what 4 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
5 theydo? 5 THE WITNESS: No, not to my knowledge.
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Theresalotinthissection.
7 Lacksfoundation. Compound. And callsfor an expert 7 Let meask you about the discussion about the number of
8 opinionand alega conclusion. 8 schoolsthat can be taken over effectively, second to
9 THE WITNESS: | would say they do many 9 last paragraph.
10 different things. 10 MR. VIRJEE: On page12?
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Amongthem? 11 MR. JACOBS: Correct.
12 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 12 THE WITNESS: Right.
13 THE WITNESS: Well, the external evaluator 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Ms. Covinreported that the
14 plansthat were developed were of awide variety and 14 committee has been thinking about how many schools can
15 wide criteriain the first instance, narrowed somewhat 15 betaken over effectively, the committeeistaking a
16 by Board action subsequently, and so external evaluators 16 practica approach. Do you see that?
17 areawideswath. You can't characterize their work. 17 A. Yes
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Okay. Let'ssee. Onpage 12 18 Q. Doyou have anyinformation asyou sit here
19 and 13, item 19, thisisthe -- an item on the issue of 19 today about the best current estimate about how many
20 awardsand interventions, right? 20 schools can be taken over effectively?
21 A.  Correct, from the advisory committee. 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 Q. Isthisthe most recent report of the advisory 22 to "can be taken over effectively.” Vague and ambiguous
23 committee to the State Board of Education? 23 asto "effectively,”" and calls for speculation. Calls
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24  for an expert opinion.
25 to"report.” 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
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for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And then President Hastings
said that atwo-tiered system of intervention is one way
to address the concern about how many schools we have
the capacity to intervene in effectively.

Aside from what he said in this meeting, are
you aware of any other consideration being givento a
two-tiered system of intervention?

MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: Two-tiered system refersto the
provisions of 961 that allow, in absence of taking over
aparticular school, the Board and the superintendent,
asking the Board's approval, are dlowed to sanction a
digtrict rather than just aschool.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Onthebottomthereit says,
Mr. Fisher commented that the Board should avoid the
impossible task of taking over schoals.

Do you seethat?

A.  Yesh

Q. Do youremember his comments from the meeting?
A. | remember him saying something like that.

Q. Didhesay morethanisreported there about

that topic?
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of significant growth.

That second sentence was about the definition
of the threshold for not invoking the event of remedia
action, right?

A. No.

Q.  What isthat about?

A.  Thedataproblems are that schools can go up

and down or down and up or up alittle, down alittle,

or any combination. And the law requires the Board and
the superintendent to make certain findings, meet
targets, made significant growth towards targets, made
No progress, so when you do that, you array.

So the "akin to probation” means that you find
someone guilty and then you tdll the Board to do
something. That's what that means. And the "consensus’
means that we divide schools into ones that aren't
making it a al and some that are making some and some
that are making good in order to have amore vaid use
of the data
Q.  Sowhat did you mean by "probation”?

A.  Thelaw dlows you to take over the schoal, the
superintendent to take over the school. The law alows
you also to have the district take over the schoal or
have a plan to take over the school. The Board, the
superintendent would approve that.
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A.  Nottomy knowledge. | don't remember anything
more than that.
Q.  Andthen Superintendent Eastin stated that it
isimportant to figure out how to engage digtricts.

Do you have an understanding, perhaps from
other things she said at this meeting or other
discussions you've had, about what she meant by engaging
districts?

MR. JORDAN: Objection. Callsfor speculation.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.

MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: Thank God she didn't ask usto
marry them.

MR. JACOBS: Joined a the hip.

THE WITNESS: It would be pure speculation, but
my understanding is she wants the districts to
understand their responsibilities under 961.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thenonthetop of page 13,
Mr. Mockler suggested that the two-tier system includes
something akin to probation for most schools that do not
show significant growth and takeover of very few
schools. And then you purportedly went on to summarize
that by consensus it appears that the Board is
comfortable with requiring some growth in the definition
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Probation would be that they are sanctioned.
They are, if you will, in adrug court sense, found
guilty, and then said, but if you do this, your own
sanction, we will watch thet. It divides those not
making full progressinto groups.
Q. Now, there are other instances of state school
takeoversthat you're aware of, right?
MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
asto "school takeovers." Overly broad.
THE WITNESS: Do you mean in Cdifornia?
MR. JACOBS: Correct.
MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
THEWITNESS: | know of no case where the State
has taken over a school.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Asopposedtoadidtrict, is
that the distinction?
A. Right
Q. Isityour understanding that one of the
options open under the combination of the old 11/USP
program and AB 961 isadistrict takeover?
MR. JORDAN: Callsfor alegal conclusion.
THE WITNESS: My understanding of thelaw is
that 961 or not, either way, thereis an ability to
sanction adistrict.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By "sanction," what's the most
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1 extreme sanction? 1 Lacksfoundation.
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. The law speaks for 2 Q. BYMR.JACOBS: Youdidn'tmeanto limitit to
3 itself. Callsfor aninadmissible legal opinion. 3 thelimit case of al 400 schools, did you?
4 THE WITNESS: | don't have the law in front of 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question.
5 me, but there are provisions. 5 THEWITNESS: Specificaly, no.
6 MR. JACOBS: Keep this open for aminute. | 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddidyou haveinmind some
7 want to segue briefly. 7 number of schools that if that number didn't meet their
8 (Exhibit SAD 239 was marked.) 8 target, you would not be in difficult circumstances when
9 MR. JACOBS: I've marked as Exhibit 238 (sic) 9 you made this comment?
10 an article from California Journa dated January 1, 10 A. No.
11 2001 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
12 MR. JORDAN: Just for the record, | think it 12 Lacksfoundation.
13 should probably be 239. 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any sense now of
14 MR. JACOBS: I'm sorry, you'reright, 239. 14  how many schools are not going to meet their target?
15 THE WITNESS: Yes. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
16 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Andyourequotedinacouple | 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor
17 of placesinthisarticle. | just note that thisis 17 speculation.
18 before the enactment of AB 961. Sothisisan article 18 THEWITNESS: No.
19 that'sjust about I1I/USP, correct? 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And isthat because you're
20 A. That'swhat the date suggests, yes. 20 il awaiting the next API?
21 Q.  Atthebottom of page 94 there's adiscussion 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
22 about how large the group of schools requiring 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor speculation.
23 date-directed remediation might be. Do you see that? 23 THE WITNESS: No.
24 A. Y eah. 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isthereason?
25 MR. VIRJEE: | think that mischaracterizes the 25 A. Wehaven't seen the adjusted -- thereal API
Page 155 Page 157
1 document. 1 just came out aweek ago for thefirst two years, not
2 Y ou want him to read the last two paragraphs? 2 the second, not the third one.
3 THE WITNESS:. The secretary of education, John 3 Q. Whenyousaythe"red API --
4 Mockler said that -- 4 A. Theadjusted API.
5 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: That part isyour comment on 5 Q. Adustedfor?
6 that issue? 6 A. InJanuary. It adjustsfor alot of things.
7 A. Y eah. 7 Q.  For socioeconomic status and other factors?
8 Q. Asyou st heretoday, do you have an estimate 8 A. No
9 of -- asyou sit here today, would you still say what 9 Q. Notthat?
10 you said inthisarticle? 10 A.  Wadl, someof that -- it updates for data that
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin | 11 wasnot availablein October.
12 evidence. Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. Callsfor 12 Q. Butthisistest score dataas opposed to the
13 gpeculation. Lacks foundation. 13 factorsthat go into -- thisis the base API score; is
14 MR. VIRJEE: It's aso compound. 14  that right?
15 Which portion of the statement? 15 A. Yes
16 MR. JACOBS: Fair enough. Let's start over. 16 Q. Haveyou participated in any discussionsin
17 Q. Did you say in words or substancein -- to 17 which there has been an estimate of the number of
18 someone who was writing an article on [1/USP for 18 schoolsthat will bein the -- that will not meet their
19 CdiforniaJournal, if al 400 schools didn't meet their 19 target?
20 target, wed bein difficult circumstances, but we don't 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
21 think that's going to happen? 21 Cadlsfor privileged communications.
22 A.  Something like that, yeah. 22 THEWITNESS: Yes.
23 Q. And obviously when you said that, the same was 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andwhat has been the substance
24 trueif 350 schools didn't meet their target, right? 24 of those discussions?
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection to the extent it may
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call for attorney/client privileged information or
information protected by the official information
privilege.

THE WITNESS: Thell/USP presentation you
referenced earlier in that document, they talked of
various aternatives that could occur depending on the
standards that one set.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you recal the range of
aternatives from that?

A.  Not specificaly.

Q. Inagenera sensedo you have atakeaway --

did you come away from that discussion with a sense of
what the likely rough number of schools would be?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: | don't recdl specificaly.
Somewhere in the neighborhood of --

MR. SEFERIAN: He doesn't want you to guess,
Mr. Mockler.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Mr. Mockler, I'm entitled to
your answer, however, and | would appreciaeit --

A.  Lessthan 100 in the potentia takeover review.

Q.  Whenyou say "less than 100," you mean
somewhere between 75 and 100, was that your take away?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
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speculaion. Vague asto context.

MR. JACOBS: That's the most ridiculous
objection I've ever heard.

THE WITNESS: We measure schools by academic
progress. Schools that begin low and make no progress,
that's a school that you haveto fix or causeto be
fixed.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andtheninthe next paragraph
you talked about how the program is showing someinitial
promise. Do you seethat?

A.  Yesh

Q. Maybel should be more precise. Itimplies by

the linkage with your comment on the turnaround that you
were a so saying something about the program showing
promise.

Did you, in fact, say something like that?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "the program.” And I'm not sure a program can show
promise.

THE WITNESS: | think the quoteisfairly
accurate, that alarge number of schools are increasing
their test scores that ordinarily would not expect such
alarge growth and that's good news.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Now, inthe context of
increasing their test scores or with reference to that
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Lacks foundation.
MR. SEFERIAN: Misstates his testimony.
THE WITNESS: It's hard to get any more
specific without going back. | haven't looked at it for
months.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. And the document youre
referring to was part of the advisory subcommittee
report?
A. ltwasan|l/USP smulation of prior used data
Theresno red data available.
Q.  Thisdocument was presented to the SBE?
A. | think so, yes.
Q.  Thenon page 95, state education officials
admit that the program is not perfect, but say it'sa
good start. Quote, there are no guarantees, close
guote, said Mockler. Quote, but we can no longer sit by
knowing there are schools out there not making progress.
It's incumbent on us moraly to give those kids a
chance, period, close quote. Do you see that?
A.  Yesh
Q. Didyousaythat in words or substance?
A.  Something like that.
Q.  Andwithit being "incumbent on us mordly to
give those kids a chance," what did you mean?
MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
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topic, are you aware of any assessment of whether the
improvement in test scoresis reflective of agenuine
improvement in the educationa opportunities given to
those children?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "assessment," "genuine improvement,” and "educationa
opportunities.”

THE WITNESS: | don't understand that question.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What part isconfusing?
A.  What areyou asking? Do some people say that
kids aren't learning if their test scores improve?

Q.  Some people do say that, don't they?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation as to what some people might say.

THE WITNESS: Some people say everything.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour persond opinion
on that topic?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Overly broad. Callsfor aninadmissible apinion.

MR. VIRJEE: Incomplete hypothetical.

THE WITNESS: Sustained academic achievement as
measured by the STAR program is an impressive display of
academic achievement in the main.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Intheman?
A. Inthemain.
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1 Q. Andby"inthemain," you mean there may be 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
2 caseswherethat's not true? 2 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion.
3 A.  Weknow of cases where people have cheated, for 3 THE WITNESS: Expertsthat have testified
4 example. That'snotimpressive. 4 before the Board and elsewhere have convinced me that
5 Q. Andareyou aware of any efforts to establish 5 sustained achievement is avery fine demonstration of
6 whether that istruefor 11/USP schools? 6 achievement, and that the vaidity and reiability of
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 7 testsarequite high.
8 to"thatistrue. 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat evidence do you find
9 Areyou talking about people cheating? 9 particularly persuasive?
10 MR. JACOBS: You'reright. That wasn't clear. 10 A. | would refer you to them.
11 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not trying to be facetious. 11 Q. Youhaveno opinion on that topic of what
12 I'mjust trying to understand. 12 evidence persuades you that the test scoresare a
13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Theimpressivenessturnson 13 rdiableindicator of educationd achievement?
14 whether the tests measure educational achievement that 14 MR. JORDAN: Asked and answered.
15 isuseful for -- in some other context, like useful asa 15 MR. VIRJEE: Asked and answered. Objection.
16 citizen of a democratic society? 16 Calsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. Also vague
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 17 and ambiguous asto "reliable” and "educationa
18 Also misstates his testimony. 18 achievement."
19 THE WITNESS: No. 19 THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question.
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What do you mean by educational | 20 Isyour question how do | know if atest isvalid?
21 achievement? Asidefrom test scores, what does 21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How doyou know if atestis
22 educational achievement mean to you? 22 vdid?
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague asto context. 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
24 MR. VIRJEE: Also incomplete hypothetical. 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | takeitthefirst stepisyou
25 THE WITNESS: Meansincressed messurable 25 listento expertswho tell you whether it'svdid?
Page 163 Page 165
1 achievement. 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
2 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And isthere any measure of 2 Incomplete and improper hypothetical.
3 that aside from test scores-- 3 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation. 4 “first step.”
5 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: -- that you believeisaway to 5 THEWITNESS: Thetest scoresused inthe STAR
6 vadidate whether the tests are valid? 6 systemarereliable and valid for the purpose in which
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Lacks foundation. 7 theyregiven.
8 Cadlsfor an expert opinion. 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andhow do you know that?
9 THE WITNESS. No. 9 A. Bythepsychometrics provided by the experts
10 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Now | don't understand where | 10 who have so advised us.
11 you're coming from. 11 Q. Wasthereany particular psychometric measure
12 How do you decide as an observer of testing and 12 that you found persuasive, or wasit just the general
13 test scores whether the test scores reflect something 13 advice?
14 that's genuinely occurring in terms of education as 14 A. Generd advice.
15 opposed to mere test taking for its own purpose? 15 MR. SEFERIAN: We've been going over an hour.
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin 16 Can wetake ashort break?
17 evidence. Assumes that he does observethat. Also 17 MR. JACOBS: Uh-huh.
18 calsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. Also calls 18 (Recesstaken.)
19 for an expert opinion. 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Mr. Mockler, referring you back
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 20 to Exhibit 239, page 96 of the printout. Theissue
21 "genuinely occurring.” 21 addressed starting in the middle of the pageis cost of
2 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. Sir? 22 takeovers. Do you seethat?
23 A.  What'sthe question? 23 A, Yes
24 MR. JACOBS. Want to read it back, please. 24 Q. Andyou arequoted as having said, there's no
25 (Record read.) 25 question that the State will need some resources to
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1 intervene, but it's not going to be a substantial 1 A Yes
2 invesment given where we are in funding. 2 Q. Andwhen you made the comment, you were
3 Do you see that? 3 optimistic, | takeit, at that point that funding for
4 A. Yes. 4 schools would continue on the track that it had been on
5 Q. Didyousaythat inwords or substance? 5 for the previous severa years?
6 A. Yes. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
7 Q. And when you said "given where we arein 7 to"previous several years' and "track." Calls for
8 funding," what did you mean? 8 speculation.
9 A. Wll, this was January 2001. 9 THEWITNESS: No.
10 MR. VIRJEE: Actudly, thejournd is dated 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What were you assuming when you
11 that day. 11 referred to given where we are in funding?
12 THE WITNESS: | don't know when | said this, 12 A. By the end of 2000, state investment in public
13 but sometimein that -- the questionishow muchmoney | 13  schools over athree-year period had grown
14 doyouneed. Theyll need some money to intervene. 14 substantialy, therefore there were funds available at
15 They asked for it, they got it. 15 districtsand at state levels to manage this task.
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. They askedfor it,theygotit, | 16 Q.  Evenwithout continued increases.
17 meaning what? 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Incomplete
18 A.  Maeaning tha the superintendent asked for $3 18 hypothetical question.
19 million and she got it. 19 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous as to
20 Q. Tha'san event that happened? 20 "continued increases."
21 A Subsequent to this statement. 21 THE WITNESS: | was talking about the state at
22 Q. Andwhichevent isthat? 22 thetime.
23 A. Fall of '01. 23 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And then you seein the next
24 Q The takeover of aschool or district? 24 paragraph there's a discussion about what is -- what
25 MR. VIRJEE: I'msorry, you're asking did a 25 resources are going to be needed to improve failing
Page 167 Page 169
1 takeover of aschool occur then? 1 schools?
2 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Let meask you, what are you 2 MR. JORDAN: Misstates the document. It says
3 referringto, sir? 3 take control of and improve.
4 A. Yousad the question -- there's no question we 4 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou asking about the next
5 need someresources, but it's not going to be a 5 paragraph?
6 substantial investment. 6 MR. JACOBS:. Take alook at thetop of the next
7 Q. Right. Andyou were referring to an instance 7 paragraph.
8 inwhichthe SPI asked for resources, | takeit, and she 8 THE WITNESS: Yeah.
9 (ot it; isthat correct? 9 MR. VIRJEE: Just for therecord, Mr. Mockler,
10 A. No. 10 you probably ought not to mark on the exhibits
11 Q. Thenl misunderstood where you were going. 11 themsdves. Just for the record, he did, on page 76,
12 A. | waspredicting that at the time the State was 12 put astray mark.
13 going to implement that portion of the 11/USP, the state 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Page 96.
14 agency or some form would need resources, meaning money | 14 THE WITNESS: 96.
15 budget dlocations. That, infact, did come to pass, so 15 MR. VIRJEE: I'msorry. If counsd directsyou
16 | was prophetic. 16 tomark, you should do so, but otherwise you should
17 Q. Soareyou referring to the staffing increase? 17 probably leave the exhibits clean.
18 A. Yes 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It saysteachers and some
19 Q. Anything esethat has been asked for so far 19 education experts bdieve that underlying causes for low
20 that you meant to embrace by your comment about, she 20 student achievement, such asteacher quality, cannot be
21 asked for it, shegot it? 21 improved without asignificant investment in higher pay
22 A. No, that'swhat | wasreferring to. 22 and staff development programs.
23 Q. Andthenwhenyou said given wherewe arein 23 Do you see that?
24 funding, were you referring to the overall school 24 A. | do.
25 funding situation at the time? 25 Q. Andhbeforethe bresk, we talked about measuring

43 (Pages 166 to 169)



Page 170

Page 172

1 student achievement by way of test scores, and now this 1 resources are available to address -- to the extent that
2 discussionis not about measurement but about what the 2 you believe that underlying causes for low student
3 inputsarethat are required for improvement in 3 achievement, such asteacher quality, require
4 achievement, right? 4 improvement, do you believe that the resources are
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 availableto do that today?
6 to"discussion." You'reasking isthat what this says? 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacksfoundation.
7 The document speaks for itsalf if you're asking what it 7 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Incomplete and
8 says. If youreinsinuating that these are 8 improper hypothetical question.
9 Mr. Mockler's statements, | think that misrepresents the 9 MR. JORDAN: Callsfor speculation.
10 document. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Michad, you started one question
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sir, did you understand the 11 and then asked another. Did you intend to include the
12 question? 12 first part of that, or just the second question?
13 A.  Youdont believe that's my statement? What's 13 MR. JACOBS: Just the second part.
14 your question? 14 MR. VIRJEE: Had nothing to do with I1/USP
15 Q. No, | wasjust wondering, do you seethat's 15 then?
16 what's being discussed there? 16 MR. JACOBS: No. I'msorry.
17 A.  Thatiswhat the statement says. 17 MR. VIRJEE: Because you started in the context
18 Q. Andwhat isyour professiona opinion on that 18 with II/USP, and then you stopped and asked awhole
19 question? 19 different question, so | need to know.
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 MR. JORDAN: | misunderstood it then too.
21 to"professiond" to the extent you're indicating that 21 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Didyou understood it, Sir?
22 hehas some professiona expertiseinthisarea. Calls 22 A. | thought you were asking about what this
23 for speculation. Lacks foundation, and calls for an 23 writer'sopinionishere.
24 expert opinion. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Which doesn't refer to 11/USP.
25 THEWITNESS: | would say an investment of $13 25 THE WITNESS: It doesn't have anything to do
Page 171 Page 173
1 billioninfour yearsis-- pretty significantly answers 1 withll/USP or anything else asfar as| cantell. But
2 that question. 2 | didn't understand the question.
3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andbythat | takeit you 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Well just takeit fromthe
4 believethat in the existing budget thereis sufficient 4 top. Wevegot dl day. | believe the context isthe
5 resources to accomplish improvement in, for example, 5 costtointervene, right? That'swhat you've just
6 teacher quality, the kind of improvement that's being 6 commented on in the previous paragraph, right?
7 referred to in this paragraph? 7 MR. VIRJEE: That'sthe context in the previous
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 paragraph. I'll object asto callsfor speculation as
9 to"exigting." 9 towhat's being referred to in the next paragraph by the
10 Areyou asking as of January 2001 or today? 10 writer.
11 MR. JACOBS: Whatever your answer was as of, 11 THE WITNESS: | thought you wanted my comment
12 gr. 12 onaparagraphinthisarticle, or partial part of the
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 13 paragraph, which suggests that investment in training
14 “improvement" and "teacher quality." Lacks foundation. 14 and higher pay are some, though not al, of the
15 THE WITNESS: | read the statement to say that 15 componentsto improve achievement, and | agreed with
16 you need investments in training and pay to continue 16 that.
17 improvement of low-performing schools. | would -- my 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddo you believe today that
18 opinion, such asitis, isthat it'strue, and that has 18 inthe context of the improvementsthat are needed in
19 been done and is continuing to be done. 19 low-performing schools that the resources are available
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by being done, you mean 20 to achieve the necessary -- to the extent that you
21 that the -- yourereferring now to the expenditure of 21 bdievethat necessary improvement -- let me simplify
22 money on those issues, correct? 22 this.
23 A, Yes 23 Y ou agree that in some cases low-performing
24 Q. Andinthe context of the [I/USP program, 24 schoolswill require further investment in teaching
25 perhaps as modified by AB 961, do you believe the 25 qudity, yes?
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also vague asto time and incomplete
hypothetical.

THE WITNESS: Isthe question will some
underperforming schools need investments to get better,
isthat the question?

MR. JACOBS:. No. Can you read back my
guestion?

(Record read.)

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "investment” and "teaching quality." Cdlsfor an
expert opinion.

MR. JORDAN: It's also vague and ambiguous as
to for what purpose.

MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper
hypothetical question.

MR. JORDAN: To meet their targets?

THE WITNESS: | think some low-performing
schools will require increased investments over timein
professiona development, teacher quality and other --
many other activitiesin order to continue to improve.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andinyour opinion -- when you
said inthis article, it's not going to be a substantial
investment given wherewe are in funding --

A.  No,that'snot --
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might cost to actualy improve the schools as opposed to
administer a program of school improvement; isthat
correct?

A.  Thecogt of intervention iswhat | was

referring to in that quote.

Q.  Thecost of intervention means what to you?

A. It meanshow many people the Department and/or
some locd agency would haveto useto goin look at and
take over, if you will, the school under the provisions

of I/USP.

Q.  Soyouwere not commenting there on once
there's atakeover and once the administrators that you
described arein place, whether a substantial investment
would be needed to improve school quality?

A. lwasnot commenting onthat at al, at dl.

Q. Sothat'smy question to you, then, because now

| see the confusion between us. What | thought you were
referring to there was whether therewould be a
substantial investment needed in order to actually bring
about school improvement.

Do you have an opinion on the funding resources
available to actualy carry out school improvement in
the context, let's say, specifically of the II/USP and
AB 961, and whether those resources are adequate?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
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MR. SEFERIAN: Wait for the question,
Mr. Mockler.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: -- wereyou commenting on the
funding resources available to accomplish what you just
recited?
A. No.
Q. Doyou believethat given wherewearein
funding today, a substantia additional investment,
meaning an increase in year-by-year amounts, is going to
be needed in order to accomplish what you just recited?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "substantial" and "additiona.” Calsfor
speculaion. Lacksfoundation. Cdls for an expert
opinion. Incomplete hypothetical.
THE WITNESS: What do you mean by
"substantial"? Got arange for that?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wel, you used theword
substantia in your comment.
A. My reference there was purely and absolutely to
the issue of the administrative expenses of
intervention, not for other activities, not with respect
to -- thisis state intervention, it has -- it's the
cost of the state intervening, not the cost of the
programin place.
Q.  Soyour comment there was not about what it
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to "adequate” and "carry out school improvement.” Calls
for speculation. Lacks foundation. And calls for an
expert opinion.

THE WITNESS: Properly spent, those resources
are sufficient to deal with the schools that are funded.
There's no -- we know of a large number of 11/USP
schools that have substantially more resources than
other 11/USP schools, so the connection between total
investment and achievement is not linear. So you can't
make a generalized statement, but overall the connection
between teachers and training is related to achievement.
And that's what that statement seems to say to me and
that's what | would believe.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: | didn't understand where you
broke the sentences in your answer. So you turned to
the topic of teachers. What did you mean to say about
teachers and teacher training?

MR. VIRJEE: Just for the record when he said
"that statement,” he pointed to paragraph -- the fourth
full paragraph of the document on page 96.

THE WITNESS: The statement is that teachers
need to be paid and they need to be trained. Staff
development, such as the term that is used, but in my
view I'll say training. | believe investment,
professional development and adequate pay for teachers
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isamgor component in turning around alow-performing
school.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andhow doesthat belief relate
to the question of the sufficiency of the total

resources available to aschool? And our focus still is

on schoolsinthell/USP or AB 961 programs.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Calsfor an expert opinion.
Incomplete hypothetical.

THE WITNESS: | would say ther€'s been
substantial investment in these issues with emphasis on
low-performing schools over the last three years, and
that investment pattern is sufficient to produce
exceptiona achievement, properly managed.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'sfocusonthat last
clause. "Properly managed,” what do you mean by that?
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about school improvement of that sort, that additional
resources are needed?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Assumes
facts not in evidence.

THEWITNESS: | think the answer to the answer
isno.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Y ou mean, no, you do not havea
basis for rebutting the claim that additional resources
are needed?
A. | don'tthink that was the question.
THE WITNESS: Want to read back the question?
(Record read.)

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: Same answey.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. No,wedo not havesucha

17 A. | meanaschool district that takes achievement 17 basis?
18 serioudly, that uses data properly, that insists on 18 A.  No, not for that question.
19 training itsteachers around a core curriculum aligned 19 Q. Canyouexplain"no"? Theteacher isasking
20 to standards. 20 the student to answer no with a complete sentence so
21 Q. Anything dsethat you meant to convey by 21 that the answer isclear here.
22 "properly managed'? 22 MR. VIRJEE: No isacomplete sentence.
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 23 MR. SEFERIAN: He's answered the question.
24 Lacksfoundation. Compound question. Callsfor an 24 MR. JACOBS: | want to make surewere
25 expert opinion. 25 connecting, Sir.
Page 179 Page 181
1 THE WITNESS: I'd prefer they didn't waste the 1 MR. JORDAN: The objectionisasked and
2 money. 2 answered.
3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Anddo you have away, from 3 MR. SEFERIAN: There's no question pending,
4 your vantage point as the executive secretary to the 4 Mr. Mockler.
5 State Board of Education -- 5 Q BY MR. JACOBS:; Nowhat, sir?
6 MR. VIRJEE: Executive director. 6 A. No.
7 MR. JACOBS: Sorry, executive director. Thank 7 MR. VIRJEE: | guessno isthe answer to your
8 you. 8 quedtion.
9 Q. --executivedirector of the State Board of 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you bdievethat sucha
10 Education to find out whether a school district is 10 basis should be devel oped?
11 properly managed, asyou just defined the term? 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Incomplete
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 hypothetica question.
13 to"haveaway," and callsfor speculation. 13 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 14 "suchabasis."
15 THE WITNESS: We measure student -- growth in 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor aninadmissible
16 student achievement as whether or not the schoal is 16 opinion.
17 becoming better. 17 THE WITNESS: What is "such abasis'?
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: So asthe night followsday, 18 MR. JACOBS:. The basisthat | asked you about
19 come next fall there are going to be pleas for 19 inmy question.
20 additional resources for schoolsin order to achieve the 20 THE WITNESS: Y our basis hasto do with night
21 kinds of school improvement that we've discussed over 21 following day sometime in September.
22 thelast couple minutes. 22 MR. JACOBS: | don' think you got where you
23 And my question to you is, do you have abasis 23 did, sir, by not listening to questions or comments.
24 and an understanding of schoal finance to be able to 24 MR. VIRJEE: That's an ingppropriate comment.
25 addresstheclaim that thisis-- that in order to bring 25 That's badgering the witness. If you have aquestion,
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1 askthequestion. 1 didtinction?

2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you haveabasisfor 2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin

3 rebutting claimsthat in order to bring about school 3 evidence. Assumesthey are mutually exclusive. Also

4 improvement, additiona funding is necessary? 4  misstates histestimony.

5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 5 THE WITNESS: The schoolsin question have

6 Vague and ambiguous as to "additional resources," and 6 substantia amounts of money. In addition, these

7 calsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. Callsfor an 7 schools have [1/USP money and potentidly, inthe

8 expert opinion. 8 future, more money. The question, isthat sufficient to

9 MR. JORDAN: Andit'sanincomplete 9 produce academic progress towards a stated goal. |
10 hypothetical. 10 would say yes.
11 THEWITNESS: | don't understandthecontextof | 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat isthe basisfor that
12 your question. Theanswer is| don't know because | 12 statement?
13 don't understandit. Areyou saying can | refutea 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
14 clamthat more money is better, isthat your question? 14 Cdlsfor speculation. Cdlsfor an expert opinion.
15 MR. JACOBS: | don't think that was my 15 THE WITNESS: Thebasisisthat similar schools
16 question. 16 with similar investments are making such improvements.
17 MR. VIRJEE: Clearly he doesn't understand your 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisa-- areyou -- what are
18 question. 18 you relying on for that statement?
19 THE WITNESS: | don't. | don't know what 19 A. The Star system assessment results for similar
20 youre getting at. 20 schools.
21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Let metryitthisway, sir. | 21 Q. Areyoureying onany analysis of the Star
22 don't think thisis so difficult, but evidently I'm 22 systemresults aimed at answering the question you just
23 wrong. 23 answered?
24 Y ou said that you didn't think there was going 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
25 tobeasubgantid investment given wherewe arein 25 to"andysis" Alsovagueastotime.
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1 funding, and you were referring to the costs -- 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible

2 essentialy to administrative costs of intervention, 2 opinion.

3 correct? 3 THEWITNESS: | think the answer isno. We

4 A. Correct. 4 look at dataregarding similar schools. | would not

5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 5 call that research. Wefind schoolsthat are similarly

6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthebasisof that wasyou 6 situated that do better than other schools by a

7 ran-- asl| understood it, you ran amental calculation 7 substantial margin, indicating that with the resources,

8 of what it would really cost to do the administrative 8 typical resources, academic improvement is clearly not

9 effort, and you concluded that in the scheme of things, 9 only possible but demonstrated.
10 that's not -- the amount of money necessary to do that 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou'ereferring to work
11 isnotalat; isthat correct? 11 that's been done by -- in this case by you and your
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Isthat supposed to be 12 4&ff, or are you referring to something else?
13 astatement of histestimony, becauseif is, it 13 A.  Justcdl upontheInternet the report of the
14 misstates his testimony. 14 STAR system. No particular research document. Although
15 MR. JORDAN: It's also asked and answered. 15 I'veseensomearound, | can't mention -- | don't
16 THE WITNESS: Thelegidature dlotted $3 16 remember their names, but there are a number.
17 million for that cost subsequent to my statement. There 17 Q. Andareyou aware of any effortsto try and
18 are some federal funds available for the administrative 18 isolate the factors that have led to the success cases?
19 costs. When | was talking about not alot, that's 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not
20 within the range of not alot. 20 evidence.
21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Now wevedistinguished between | 21 THE WITNESS: Only in the generalest of terms.
22 the administrative costs of intervention and the costs 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Whenyou say "generadest of
23 of bringing out improvement, the desired improvement in 23 terms" what do you mean?
24 school performance. 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to the extent it calls
25 Do you recall that discussion of that 25 for privileged communications.
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1 THE WITNESS: Weve had testimony in front of 1 THE WITNESS: Achievement isthe output.
2 the Board regarding successful schoolsin which we have 2 Achievement isthe product, yes.
3 members of our Board who were principals of successful 3 MR. JACOBS: We can just finish up with Exhibit
4 schoolsthat are -- have conditions similar to those 4 238. Those were those minutes.
5 low-performing schools with respect to the needs of 5 MR. VIRJEE: Any particular page?
6 those students and their conditions, and they have 6 Q. BYMR.JACOBS: Yedh, let'sgotopagel3. And
7 indicated a number of variables that they have used to 7 thisisitem 22, the proposed waiver policy for
8 produce achievement and have so demonstrated that. 8 retroactive waivers. Do you seethat?
9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Now togo back to asthe night 9 A Yes
10 follows day comment, | take, then, that as you sit here 10 Q. Andyou commented that the waiver policy that
11 today, if someone were to say to you, in order to bring 11 Ms. Pinegar was evidently responsible for developing was
12 about sustained systemic improvements in achievement as 12 averyimportant waiver policy. It representsalot of
13  we used those terms earlier today, we need more funding, 13 money for districts.
14 your answer would be, look at similarly-situated 14 Do you seethat?
15 schoals, they have comparable funding resources, they're 15 A Yes
16 making improvements, why can't you? 16 Q. Whenyourereferring to the money for
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 17 didgtricts, were you referring to categorical funding for
18 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Callsfor 18 ingtructional materidsthat isin jeopardy if the
19 anexpert opinion. 19 digtrict doesn't comply with 60119?
20 THEWITNESS: | would say that's what I'd ask 20 A. Yes
21 themtodofirgt, yes. 21 Q. And canyou summarize the policy that was -- |
22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andin anticipation of 22 takeit the policy was adopted, right?
23 intervention by the State in the fall, is there any 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
24 additiona effort underway to identify the factors that 24 astopolicy. Vagueastotime. Overly broad.
25 explain the success stories; in other words, is somebody 25 THE WITNESS: Yeah, | bdieve the minutes show
Page 187 Page 189
1 looking at that with aview toward providing some 1 that it was adopted unanimoudly.
2 support to the state itself when it hasto intervenein 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isthe substance of the
3 those schools? 3 policy?
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The document speaks
5 Lacksfoundation. 5 for itsdf or the policy spesks for itsdlf.
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
7 for privileged communications. 7 astotimeof palicy.
8 THE WITNESS: | couldn' list aparticular set 8 THE WITNESS: The policy createsthe
9 of studies, but the Department works on that data all 9 requirements the districts must meet in order to be
10 thetimeinthe accountability unit. Asthey get new 10 withinthe statute, and even if they're within the
11 dataand aswe get more trend data, they do that al the 11 datute, to meet the Board's policy asto waivers.
12 time. Other researchersdo that dso. | don't have any 12 Distinguishing essentialy between minor and
13 particular onesto cite, but I've seen outputs of some 13 inadvertent errors which did not violate the substance
14 of those. 14 of thelaw, whichisto say, do you have materias with
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Any particular outputs you're
referring to?
A.  Sound curriculum, focused training of teachers,
principal leadership and increased achievement.
Q. Andachievement isthe output of those inputs,
correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "outputs' and "inputs.”
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It'snotitsef aninput?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "input.”
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respect to -- compared to districts that -- whose
violations were beyond technical and inadvertent or who
did not meet the intent of the law.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doesthe policy describethe
latter case?

A. Yes

Q. Doyourecal what that says?

A. | dontrecall specificaly, but it essentialy
saysthelocal board has to make certain assertions that
while they may have made technical violations of the
notice, for example, that they have, in fact, or will
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1 havewithinthat period the materials. And if they 1 portionin particular that starts with Mockler and other
2 don't so assert, then they do not receive awaiver. 2 ate officids have raised concerns about the quality
3 The Board creates paolicies under waivers purely 3 of many achievement plans that were submitted to the
4 for the reason of informing districts of the likelihood. 4 datethisyear.
5 Anybody can still ask for awaiver, it's just more 5 Do you see that?
6 likely you'll get it if you're within policy than if 6 A. Yes
7 yourewithout. 7 Q. Andthenit says, because of those concerns,
8 Q. Soit'syour understanding that the way thisis 8 the State Board of Education is weighing a proposal to
9 going to beimplemented from here on out, in applying 9 tighten requirements for the batch of action plans that
10 for awaiver, the districts will be required to say -- 10 will arrive next spring. Do you see that?
11 toreport on the substance of -- the substantive 11 A, Yes
12 question that they do or do not have sufficient 12 Q. Soifyoufocuson thedate of thisarticle,
13 textbooks or they do or do not have a plan to get 13 you had raised concerns about the quality of the first
14 sufficient textbooks or instructional materials? 14 batch that had been received; isthat right?
15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The policy speaks for 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
16 itsdf. And aso object to the extent you're talking 16 to"raised concerns."
17 about any other kind of waiver other than 60019 waivers. | 17 THE WITNESS: There's atiming sequenceissue
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Cadlsfor speculation. 18 here. | don't know precisely when this concern was
19 THE WITNESS. Thewaiver policy -- theBoard's | 19 raised. By September of 2000 | was-- | think | was
20 authority inthisareato waive is restricted by statute 20 secretary at thetime or interim secretary. Previousto
21 tominor and inadvertent. | believe there may be other 21 that | waswiththeBoard. And | don't recall the
22 terms, but essentidly small errors. 22 timing of it, but we looked at theinitial data of
23 But even that -- the Board has felt that if 23 initia plans, and the Board took action to specify some
24 there were minor errors, then the substance of the 24 narrowing of the criteriato the plans, and especialy
25 poalicy isthat the district had to meet the overdl 25 with respect to the use of test scores and the subscores
Page 191 Page 193
1 criteriaof law. Andthey did so assert and 1 todefine data, the training, with respect to
2 demongrate. Therefore, if you want the State to give 2 ingtructiona materials, professiona knowledge of the
3 you your money back, you'd better have met the 3 dandards, knowledge of frameworks. And that had been
4  substance. 4 doneback in 19 -- | believe 1999, or maybe early 2000.
5 Q. BY MR JACOBS: And by "the substance" you mean 5 I dont recal exactly the sequence.
6 theactua substantive outcome of the textbooks and 6 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Soit sayson Wednesday --
7 ingtructional materias purchasing and distribution as 7 which would probably be Wednesday, September 6th, 2000,
8 opposed to whether or not there was, in fact, a hearing? 8 based onthe article date -- the Board will vote ona
9 A. Correct. 9 plan requiring evaluators to submit additional
10 Q. Let meshow you another article from the Los 10 information about the schools they're reviewing. Do you
11 AngedesTimes. Thisis 240. 11 seethat?
12 (Exhibit SAD-240 was marked.) 12 A. Yes
13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou are quoted, sir, on 13 Q. Isthatwhat yourereferringtointermsof a
14 page 16 of the printout, the third page. 14 tightening up?
15 MR. VIRJEE: Just for the record, just soit's 15 A. Board palicy, yes.
16 clear, on many of these documents, while they're 16 Q. Itsaysinthearticlethat the reports will
17 consecutively numbered, they don't start & No. 1. This 17 haveto show that each student at a campus has a
18 one, for example, starts at page 14. Exhibit 239 starts 18 complete set of books aligned to the state's new
19 a page 94. Sol don't want there to be any indication 19 academic standards.
20 that pages were missing from the exhibits. 20 Do you seethat?
21 MR. JORDAN: For the record, we've been using 21 A. Yes
22 theinterna pagination as opposed to the pages counting 22 Q. DidtheBoard, infact, requirethat of the
23 from the beginning of each exhibit. 23 action plans?
24 MR. VIRJEE: Exactly. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | wantto ask you about the 25 Lacksfoundation. Vagueastotime.
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THEWITNESS: | don't know what date thisis.
The Board at some point -- and | don't know what meeting
thiswas, but the Board at some point did, in fact,
adopt additiona criteriafor [1/USP plansto be
submitted in subsequent years, and included something
about the review of standards, frameworks and
instructional materids. | don't have the specifics of
it. | couldn't say thisis precisely correct, but it's
inthat genre.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: To the extent you have followed
the evolution of policy inthisarea, isit your
understanding that the Board policy that was adopted
thenisthe -- is currently in force?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "currently in force."

THE WITNESS: Areyou referring to [1/USP
plans, 961 plans?

MR. JACOBS: I'mreferring to the plans that
you were referring to.

THE WITNESS: Well --

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: It'sunclear from 961 what 11/lUSP
plans will come to the state and what their content will
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as Exhibit 241.

(Exhibit SAD-241 was marked.)
Q. BY MR. JACOBS: I'm going to talk about item
14.
A. Page what?
Q. It's the first and second and third pages of
the handout. It's 26 through 27 of the internal
numbering of the document.
A.  Yeah
Q.  Andmy question to you is about your comments
there. You said thereisalot of money to help these
schools, but little state-level involvement. Department
staff does review al plans, and this year's plans are
better than last year's plans, however there are still
substantial problemsin key areas. An incredible amount
of money is being spent on consultants which gives us
pause.

Do you see that?
A. Yes.

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
evidence.

MR. JACOBS: What fact did | assume that was
not in evidence?

24 be. Thelaw has been changed subsequent to this 24 MR. SEFERIAN: That he made that statement.
25 criteria, soit's still unclear, pending legidative 25 MR. JACOBS: My question was, do you see that.
Page 195 Page 197
1 technica adjustments, asto whether or not -- what's 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Y our question started, you
2 the nature of the Board's authority with respect to 2 sated that. And you went on. 'Y ou assumed that he made
3 plans. Sotherésa-- wereinthe middle of like two 3 that statement.
4 different things going on at once. But absent 4 MR. VIRJEE: He'stold you he seesit, Mike.
5 legidative action, that was the policy. 5 MR. JACOBS: Sometimes | haveto clarify the
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthen-- so keep separating 6 objection, Mr. Virjee.
7 outthe AB 961 issue. It's your understanding that the 7 MR. VIRJEE: | appreciatethat. But the
8 Board policy currently requires that the action plan 8 questionisdid you seethat, he said yes.
9 have those components that you spoke about a couple of 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doesthat capture the substance
10 questions and answers ago? 10 of your comments on the topic?
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Board palicy speaks 11 A. Ingenerd, yes.
12 for itsdf. 12 Q. Firstof dl, what did you mean by alot of
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto "those 13 money to help these schools?
14 components." 14 MR. VIRJEE: Just for the record, you haven't
15 THE WITNESS: Previous to the passage of 961, 15 asked him whether he said that.
16 ingenera the answer would be yes. With the passage of 16 MR. JACOBS: | just did.
17 961 and the ability of districtsto proceed to action 17 MR. VIRJEE: | missed that. Faling asleep.
18 without plan and the confusion within that law, | can't 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What did you mean by alot of
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assert the effectiveness or the legal effect of these
criteriafor all 11/lUSP schools.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | guessmaybel justhad a
simpler question. The Board hasn't actually taken
formal action to revise the policy?

A. No. No.

Q. Let menow ask youtolook at what well mark

NNNNNNDDN
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money to help these schools?

A.  Wadl, $100 million, $200 astudent. In

addition to a $50,000 planning grant, these schools
receive about $200 a student on top of al of the money
they have.

Q. Andthen"little state-level involvement," what
did you mean by that?
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A. 1lI/JUSPisdesigned to have -- to be essentidly
aloca school-based externally evaluated system with
very little state oversight.

Q. Andwasthat adescriptive or aprescriptive
comment you were making there?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "descriptive" or "prescriptive.”

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wereyou urging that there be
more state-level involvement?

A. No.

Q.  Just describing the current system?

A.  Describing what the law says.

Q.  And then you were commenting on the plans and
you said this year's plans are better, but there are

till substantial problems. Do you see that?

A. Yes Itwasagenera statement.

Q. Yousad substantial problemsin key aress.
What did you have in mind when you said that?

MR. VIRJEE: If you recall.

THE WITNESS: The Board adopted apolicy, or
has had apolicy regarding |1/USP schools. The question
isdid each of the plans that were sent up fully comply
with those, that is to say, did they comment about the
training, did they comment about how they used test
scores to improve instruction, did they comment about
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personal judgment. Digtricts might have a different
view of that.

Q. Hasthere been any action at the Board level to
address the issue of how the action plan money is being
spent?

A. No.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Callsfor speculation.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thenit says Ms. Tacheny notes
that it might be interesting, as afollow-up, to see

what the good plans and good external evaluators do to
help aschool. Do you seethat?

A. ldo.

Q.  What did you understand her to be suggesting?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence.

THE WITNESS: Ms. Tacheny isan incredibly
bright reseach-oriented person, and she would loveto do
abunch of research on every action the Board tekes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asidefrom that, what did you
understand her to be proposing?

A. That'sal | got fromthat isthat she said it

might be interesting to do some research on, to track
them over time, does it produce good results. So it
would beinteresting. Sure, | agreeit'sinteresting.
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state and local schools. And our review, which was not
an in-depth research, indicated that we -- we did the
same thing the year before on a sample basis, and our
sample, just in general, suggested the plans seemed to
be getting better, but there were some that continued to
be pretty vague.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sothekey areasinwhichthere
were problems, they related to areas that the Board
policy had specifically asked the plans to focus on?

A.  Andthe statute does also.

Q. Andwerethere-- did you identify any new
problem areas in reviewing the plans at that time?

A.  No, not specificaly.

Q.  Andthen anincredible amount of money isbeing
spent on consultants, which gives us pause.

Isthat money that comes out of the $50,000
planning grant, or were you referring to something else?
A.  Both planning and implementation. When you
look at the budgets, we don't get the budget for
planning, we get the budget only for implementation.
When you look at the budget, you see digtricts
externdly hiring external consultants external to
digricts. If that'sdl you're doing, that seemsto
suggest you're not -- you wouldn't have enough money
left over for training and other things. That'sjust a
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Q. Butnot interesting enough for you to be -- but
only interesting and not sufficiently useful to warrant
the expenditure of funds?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Cadlsfor an expert opinion.

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THEWITNESS: | don't think it would be a
useful exercise.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhyisthat?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: Wéll, because if you note the
timing of this, in July of 2001, it was clear that the
legidative direction was to terminate the requirement
of the external evaluators. Soit'sinteresting to look
at dead people, but it doesn't help you much for the
living.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And how about the good plans
focus of that as opposed the good externa evaluators?

A.  Wadl, that'sintellectualy interesting, but as

to whether good plans produce good results, again, |

think the legidative assumption was that good plans

that are approved by the state are not asimportant as
other activities schools could do.

Q. Andwhat doyou--

A.  That'sjust what the legidlature was doing.
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1 Q. Whatdoyou basethat on? 1 THE WITNESS: There are lots of folks looking
2 A. 961 essantidly substantialy cuts back on the 2 all/USPresults.
3 issueof plans and the issue of external evaluators and 3 MR. JACOBS: | mean acontract.
4 therole of the Board in approving those plans, alowing 4 THE WITNESS: | believe, yes, thereis. |
5 digtrictsto proceed to -- outside of the planning stage 5 believe, yes, that'strue. | don't have much detailson
6 toanimplementation of activity. 6 it, but | believeit is because there -- theré's dways
7 Q.  Withtheevauation not to be based on aplan, 7 beenafunding issue.
8 but on whether they get results? 8 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Do you know the current status
9 A. Y es, they do have to have a plan, but it's not 9 ofit?
10 that first-step planning phase. It's amuch truncated 10 A. ldonot
11 system. 11 Q. Allright. Let'sdoanother article. Well
12 Q. Andthenit says, Superintendent Eastin stated 12 mark thisas 242.
13 that federd law requires some district-level 13 (Exhibit SAD-242 was marked.)
14 responsbility. State law does not. She thinks that 14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisisanarticle dated August
15 the Board shares her concern that there be district 15 15th, 2000. Headline, economic disparity seenin
16 responshility. Mr. Mockler noted that the law requires 16 student test results, results show poorer performance by
17 thedistrict to take action if schools do not reach 17 neediest pupils, from San Francisco Chronicle.
18 their 5-percent growth target. Thisis one way we track 18 Y ou are quoted there as having said, the battle
19 schools progress. 19 istoclosethegap over time. A lot moreis needed,
20 Do you see that? 20 but we know the ingredients, clear standards,
21 A, Yes 21 appropriate instructional material, and well-trained
22 Q. Now, this comment was made before AB 961 had | 22 teachers.
23  been enacted, right? 23 Do you see that?
24 A.  Uh-huh 24 A, Yes
25 Q. Sowhat wereyoureferringtointermsof a 25 Q. DidMs. Asmov, thewriter of thisarticle,
Page 203 Page 205
1 requirement that the district take action if schools do 1 quote you accurately?
2 not reach their 5-percent growth target? 2 A.  Withinreason, yeah.
3 A. [IJUSPlaw requires districts who, in their 3 Q. Andwhenyousadalot moreisneededin
4 11/USP schools, who did not reach the first year of a 4 August 15th, 2000, you meant to say that schools -- that
5 target, which isthe 5-percent growth to the higher 5 the school system needs to achieve clear standards,
6 levd, that the digtrict is supposed to go in and try to 6 appropriateinstructiond materias, and well-trained
7 help them get better. It'sinthelaw. It doesn't tell 7 teachers, correct?
8 themwhattodo. Itjust saystakealook, do 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
9 something. That's my understanding of the law. 9 Vague and ambiguous.
10 Q. Andsoyouwere offering that as an instance of 10 Areyou asking what he meant by "alot moreis
11 whether -- asan instance that thereis, in fact, some 11 needed'?
12 didgtrict responsibility under the existing statute, was 12 That's what he's asking.
13 that your point? 13 THE WITNESS: As| understand the question,
14 A. Yes | wasbeing politeto the superintendent. 14 that'sincorrect.
15 Q. Now,thereisanevduation of the [l/USP 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sowhat did you mean?
16 program underway, isn't there? 16 A.  Weél, | meant that we know that clear
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. 17 standards, appropriate instructiond materias, and
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 18 trained teachers produce better results, and that | know
19 to"evaduation." 19 fromat this pointin time, August 2000, that we had not
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to the extent it calls 20 yet fully adopted math standards, instructional
21 for privileged communications. 21 materiadsaigned with standards. We had not yet
22 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovagueastotime. 22 adopted afull set of reading materids directly aligned
23 THE WITNESS: Y ou mean an official one with the 23 to standards, we had not yet fully implemented the
24 Department? 24 governor'stesting program. Nor had we implemented the
25 MR. JACOBS: That'swhat I'm referring to. 25 teacherspriority block grant. Nor had we implemented
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the teacher fellowship program, nor the increasein
grants to teachers who were teaching in low-performing
schooals, the expansion of the teacher loan forgiveness
program to provide support for teachersin the lower
decile schools. Or | guess| dready said or any of the
professional development, reading, math. We had just
begun that. Sothat's what | meant.
Q. Soif you were asked the question she asked you
then, would you say -- you would say something different
today, right, you would not say alot more is needed?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Incomplete hypothetical.

MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor aninadmissible
opinion. Assumes facts not in evidence.

THEWITNESS: | think werealot closer now
than we were then.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And now -- when you say you're
"alot closer now," are you referring to the programs
that you referred to earlier, or are you actudly
referring to outputs in terms of test scores?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Or both?

MR. VIRJEE: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: | would say theingredients,
we're more closer to having the ingredients.
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closing, what examples come to mind?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Cdls for an expert opinion. Also
vague astotime.

THE WITNESS: | don't have anything to add on
at.
BY MR. JACOBS: Y ou don't have anything to --
Do | have anything to add on gaps widening?
Correct.
No, | don't have anything.
. And asyou sit here today, you can't think of
any gaps that are not closing?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
asto "gaps." Calsfor aninadmissible opinion. Lacks
foundation.

THE WITNESS: Separate question, and there's
not enough data to answer that question because we don't
track kids over time.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisistheissuerelated to
the CSIS, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "issuerelated to CSIS."

THEWITNESS: Itisanissuereated tothe
lack of atracking system, whether it's CSIS or any
other tracking system, that is to say, tracking
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andinterms of the gap, were
you referring to the achievement gap?

A. | wasreferring to awide variety of

achievement gaps.

Q.  And do you have an opinion today with reference
to whatever achievement gaps you were referring to then
whether the gap is closed or wide -- the gaps have

closed or widened since then?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Cadlsfor an expert opinion.

MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.

THE WITNESS: | think some of the gaps are
closing and some are not.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And the onesthat areclosing
are? What do you have in mind?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Cadlsfor an expert opinion.

THE WITNESS: For example, percent of English
learner scoring above the 50th percentile on the
standards and norm-reference test. Just an example.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Any other examplesthat cometo
mind as you sit here?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How about gapsthat are not
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individual student progress over time. The datais
compounded by intakes and extakes from the system.
Without over-time data, it's very hard to get agood
handle on what you're talking about.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By intakesand extakesinthe
system, you're referring to?

A.  Turnover, kids. English learners becoming
fluent in English. New kids coming to the system from
foreign lands.

Q. Andby "the system," are you referring to the
system as awhole now, or as any particular school or
system, both?

A.  Lotsof schoals, lots of districts.

Q. Andin particular with reference to

well-trained teachers, aside from the particular
programs that you mentioned, do you have any basis for
stating whether teacher training has, in fact, improved
since you made this statement?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "teacherstraining." Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks
foundation. Callsfor an expert opinion.

THE WITNESS: | would say that the professiona
development activities in reading, mathematics and other
subjects, at least by our evidence, has produced much
better quality of teaching those subjects.
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1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andtheevidencethat youre | 1 THE WITNESS: The quote says--
2 pointing to iswhat? 2 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Thequoted words are, immense
3 A.  Anecdotd evidence from the University of 3 savingsin capitds. The entire sentence has you saying
4 Cdifornia 4 in substance, the increased interest in year-around
5 Q. Andby"anecdota evidence," what are you 5 programs results from immense savingsin capital. Do
6 referringto? 6 youseethat?
7 A. Theyhavearecipient research project going. 7 A Yes
8 Theydon't havedl their data, but that's their sense. 8 Q. And then the sentence goesonto say, by
9 Q. What arethe parameters of that research? 9 increasing the capacity of existing schoals, adistrict
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 10 can postpone costly construction of new schooals.
11 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto 11 Do you see that?
12 “parameters.” 12 A, Yes
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls 13 MR. VIRJEE: Actudly, the sentence doesn't go
14 for privileged communications. 14 on. That'sthe next sentence, but that's fine.
15 THE WITNESS: Probably better askthem. The | 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It'sdtill true, isit not,
16 law requiresthem to track the student achievement 16 that year-round programs save capital, yes?
17 resultsof ther training in reading and math. 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwho isthe "they'? 18 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Vague and
19 A. Universty of California, Professona 19 ambiguous asto “capita.” Also overbroad.
20 Development Indtitute. 20 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible
21 Q. Isthereanindividua who you're thinking of? 21 opinion.
22 A. No. 22 THEWITNESS: There are ways that year-round
23 MR. JACOBS: Why don't we take five minutes 23 schools save -- can save capita facilities funds. They
24  here. 24 have other costs and other benefits.
25 (Recesstaken.) 25 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andthearticlehasyouthenin
Page 211 Page 213
1 MR. JACOBS: I'dliketo mark asthenextin 1 thenext paragraph estimating what it would have taken
2 order Exhibit 243, an article from the Los Angeles Times 2 athetimeto-- let me ask you.
3 dated June 16, 1986, headline, year-round programs given 3 The article states, the Los Angeles Unified
4 high marks for educational continuity. 4 School District, which has placed 93 schools on
5 (Exhibit SAD-243 was marked.) 5 year-round schedules, needs $1.5 hillion to build enough
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Yourequoted, sir, onthe 6 schoolsto meet its growth, Mockler said. New schools
7 middle of the second page of the printout, page 212, 7 cost about $14,000 per student, he said. So every time
8 marked inthe upper right-hand corner. 8 construction can be avoided through year-round
9 A. Right 9 scheduling, quote, you can put that, paren, money, close
10 Q. If youlook at the beginning of the article, 10 paren, inthe bank, close quote.
11 you'll seethat there are some comments from various 11 Do you seethat?
12 observers about how year-round programs enhance 12 A Yes
13 educationa quality, and then the article turns to the 13 Q. Probably don't remember the discussion with the
14 issue of increasing school capacity right before the 14 reporter that's reflected here, do you?
15 phrase"immense savings." Do you see that? 15 MR. VIRJEE: In1986?
16 A. ldo. 16 THEWITNESS: No, but it's abit of amixed
17 Q. Andthenyou were quoted as saying that the 17 metaphor, | know, just by the numbers.
18 increased interest -- the quoteis, immense savings, in 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That was my question, did you
19 capitas, close quote. The sentenceis-- 19 understand you to be commenting at the time about what
20 MR. VIRJEE: | don't think those are quotes. 20 it would taketo build out of year-round schedules, or
21 Thereisjust asingle quotation there. MaybeI'm 21 to meet growth with the continuation of 93 schools on
22 wrong. | think that'sintended -- 22  year-around schedules?
23 MR. JACOBS: No, it'sinthe sentence itsdlf. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
24 MR. VIRJEE: | apologize. | waslooking at the 24 Lacksfoundation asto what he understood at thetimein
25 title 25 1986, June 1986.
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1 THE WITNESS: How many schools are on 1 referring to you may overstate your capacity, that is to
2 year-round does not determine the savings, it's the 2 say, you could put too many students on a campus and
3 number of students for whom you do not build aschool is | 3 have negative effects. So while theoretically you can
4 the capital savings. 4 have substantial capacity increases by your
5 The $14,000 figure refers to the average 5 configuration, that density, that level of density could
6 statewide cost of building a school. It is much lower 6 cause negative effects. It'slike anything else. Too
7 than the average cost of building aschool in Los 7 much candy hurts you.
8 Angeles at that time, which was about twice that amount. 8 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: So when you were referring to
9 Q BY MR. JACOBS: Andwasyour estimateof $1.5 | 9 the configuration, were you in any way referring to the
10 hillion to build enough schools to meet its growth, was 10 particular choice of year-round schedule that is
11 that to meet growth prospectively, or to, in addition, 11 adopted?
12 move the 93 schools that were on year-round schedules, 12 MR. VIRJEE: When hewas just referring to
13 &t least some of them, off of those schedules? 13 configuration, or when he was referring back then?
14 MR. JORDAN: Assumesthat was his estimate. 14 MR. JACOBS: | think it's clear.
15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Callsfor speculation. Lacks
16 Lacksfoundation. Assumes facts not in evidence. 16 foundation. Vague astotime.
17 THE WITNESS: | recall that it was adiscussion 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Calsfor an inadmissible
18 ingenera about managing capacity with the massive 18 opinion.
19 increase in number of students, and that one could build 19 THE WITNESS:. Asl recadl, in those years there
20 schoolswhich would cost "X" amount of money, and 20 were multiple types of schedules being used in LA and in
21 depending on where you are, the cost differentials for 21 other districts, so it was a generic statement about a
22 building aschool are immense depending inthemainon | 22 sound year-round school program.
23 land costs. 23 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And asyou sit here -- let me
24 So the 93 schools was kind of a -- they sort of 24 ask you this, what is your -- what work have you done
25 weaved in some other information. Thiswas not my 25 that has given you information about the effects,
Page 215 Page 217
1 quote. My quoteis LA gets excess capacity in those 1 positive and negative, of moving toward multi-track
2 schoolsto handle growth. The alternative would be to 2 year-round schedules?
3 Dbuild those schools, and that would have a cost. 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
4 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andyour estimate at thetime 4 to"work," "done." Vague asto time, and assumes facts
5 wasit would have cost about $1.5 billion? 5 notinevidence.
6 A. |dontrecal that number but that -- you 6 THE WITNESS: What do you mean, worked on?
7 know. 7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | takeit oneway you learned
8 Q. Youreferred earlier to additiona benefits and 8 about it was because you represented Los Angeles Unified
9 coststhat are provided by a move to year-round schools. 9 Schoal District, which was one of the adopters of
10 What did you mean? 10 multi-track year-round schooling, correct?
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
12 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Overbroad, 12 evidence.
13 and callsfor an expert opinion. Also vague asto time. 13 Y ou don't have to assume that smply because he
14 THE WITNESS: At that time, depending on how 14 takesit that way.
15 you configure the schools, students may have moretime 15 THE WITNESS: Inthat period of time we were
16 inschool and more opportunities for intercession, 16 advocating that if school districtsdid go on
17 intervention if they're low achieving. The costs 17 year-round, that they receive funding based upon the
18 include managing ayear-round schedule, size and scope 18 savingsthat they made to support year-round schools and
19 issues, capacity, et cetera 19 to build new schools, and that partialy was adopted by
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhenyou said dependingon | 20 thelegidature.
21 the configuration, what were you referring to? 21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhenyou say partially
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 22 adopted, what do you mean?
23 Lacksfoundation. Overbroad. Callsfor an expert 23 A. Thelegidature adopted ayear-round school
24 opinion. 24 incentive program that it never funded in which
25 THE WITNESS: Well, it'sonly an opinion. I'm 25 didricts at that time would be receiving arelative,
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general payment to be used by the district to support
the cost of year-round or to build new schools as an
incentive to get better capacity use.

Q.  Whenyou say "never funded," what do you mean?
A.  Thelegidature and the governor at that time

did not fully fund that which wasin theinitia law,

the proposal. ‘

Q.  Andwhen you say not fund, how does that work
statutorily? And by that | mean, is there some
statutory mechanism that isin the law, but something
happened so that the money did not flow down through
that mechanism?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an
inadmissible legal opinion.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Callsfor alegal opinion.

THE WITNESS: Thelegidature and the governor
simply appropriated |ess money than was needed to fund
the incentive and it's prorated.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Theincentive programisinthe
statute; isthat correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Statute speaks for
itself.

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisthat truetoday?
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MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks
foundation.

There's been no evidence that Mr. Mockler was
urging anything.

THE WITNESS: The suggested formula was based
precisely on the cost avoided. Those costs that were
avoided were dwaysin dispute. Some chose a statewide
average cost, which is disadvantageous to districts with
high land costs. Some chose adirect district cost of,
for example, land cost and that dispute wasthere. The
funding was there, so we urged full cost reimbursement
aswe dways do.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthe"we" hereis?

A.  ThelLosAngees Unified Digtrict on their
behalf. And received lessthan that, asis often the
case.

Q.  And how did you trand ate avoided capitd costs
into ayear-by-year budget-related formula?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "you."

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THE WITNESS: Cogt-avoided formulas are smply
mathematical calculations, the costs that would have
incurred had you built a new school, you multiply it by
some factor, cost of bond money, if you will, and that's
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MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.

THEWITNESS: A different statute in effect
today.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Doesit haveasimilar
mechanism?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Statute speaks for itself.

THE WITNESS: "Similar" may betoo grest a
word, but alike alittle bit.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How would you compare and
contrast the mechanism that you were referring to from
the mid '80s and the mechanism today?
A. It'salesser amount per dollar saved than was
originally envisioned.
Q. Andistha amount fully funded today?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "fully funded."

THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And compared with what you are
urging -- can we get alittle more concrete.

What was the funding level you were urging in
the mid '80s?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "funding level" and "you" and "urging."

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
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your ongoing savings.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Buttotrandatethat intoa
year-by-year budget alocation, you have to do some sort
of amortization or present value calculation?

A.  Yesh,itsal inthelaw.

Q.  And do you remember what the mechanism was?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Statute speaks for
itself. Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.

Cadlsfor an expert opinion.

THEWITNESS: | don't know the details.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you recal what the dollar
amount per student that LAUSD was proposing at thetime
would have been?

A. No.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "dollar amount per student."

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THEWITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Roughly?

MR. VIRJEE: Same objection. Calsfor
speculation. Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: No. ThelLA position was quite
simple. It was do the cdculation on what the average
cost of theland is and average cost of building and
amortize it, well take the savings.
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1 Q. BY MR. JACOBS. Now, at thetimethat LAUSD was 1 THE WITNESS: | don't know. | haven't worked
2 advocating this position, was the district arguing that 2 onthat kind of stuff for along time.
3 thisadditional money would be needed in order to 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That was actually how we got
4 provide additional resources at the school level to 4 intothis, because | was asking what work you did
5 compensate for some of the disadvantages of moving to a 5 related to multi-track year-around school.
6 year-round schedule? 6 And | take it one answer is, | represented
7 MR. VIRJEE: ‘Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 7 LAUSD ontheissue of -- on various issues associated
8 to"disadvantages." Callsfor speculation asto what 8 withMTYRE, correct?
9 thedigtrict may or may not be arguing or advocating. 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
10 MR. JORDAN: Callsfor hearsay without 10 to"represented.”
11 sufficient foundation as to who said what to whom. 11 THE WITNESS: Therewasaperiodinmy life
12 THE WITNESS: They made many arguments about 12 when| represented LA Unified School District onissues
13 equity and distribution, relative distributions, costs, 13 involving multi-track year around.
14 ability to use to bond the money to build other 14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwerethere other
15 facilities. They made many arguments. 15 assignments that you've had in your professional career
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you say "they," are you 16 that have caused you to look in-depth &t MTY RE issues?
17 including yourself? 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
18 A.  Partialy me, withlots of other people. 18 to cause "to look in-depth."
19 Q. Butyou wereone of the advocates for the LAUSD 19 THEWITNESS: No.
20 position, correct? 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andasyou -- inyour work with
21 A, lwes 21 the State Board, have you participated in discussions
22 Q. Whendoyourecall it becoming clear that 22 about the advantages or disadvantages of MTY RE?
23 the-- drikethat. 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to the extent it calls
24 Thefirst thing that happens is that the 24 for privileged communications.
25 legidature enacts an incentive program with aformula, 25 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
Page 223 Page 225
1 and then subsequently you learned what the appropriation 1 ‘"discussions."
2 would be, correct? 2 THE WITNESS: No, the State Board has no
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 3 jurigdiction over schoal facilities matters.
4 to"enacts," "formula." 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And asinterim secretary, did
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical 5 you participate in any such discussions?
6 question. 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
7 MR. VIRJEE: Also callsfor alegal conclusion. 7 for privileged communications.
8 Any statute or enactment spesks for itself. 8 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
9 THE WITNESS: There were presumed savings and 9 "such discussions."
10 appropriaions, and there were changesin the laws, 10 THE WITNESS: There probably were some
11 natura and political process. It happened over along 11 discussions. | can't recall many. It was aperiod of
12 period of time. | can't give you too many specifics 12 timewhen -- that fall when alot of issues around bond
13 about it at this point. 13 issueswere being talked about, but | don't recall any
14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doyourecdl any moment--any | 14 specific conversation.
15 particular point in timein which you realized that 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. So, again, now with aview
16 LAUSD would not be receiving what it had hoped it would 16 toward closing out how the State might use you at trial,
17 receive for moving to multi-track year-round schedules? 17 other than the LAUSD involvement, | take it you have no
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation 18 other basisin your knowledge or experience for
19 astowhat LAUSD might have hoped for. Vague and 19 testifying in detail about MTY RE issues; is that
20 ambiguous. Overbroad, and vague asto time. 20 correct?
21 THE WITNESS: | have no direct recollection. 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
22 Q. BY MR JACOBS: And now, theway the statute 22 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguousasto MT --
23 workstoday, what is the formula? 23 whatever theinitils are. Multi-year tracking issues.
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The statute speaks for 24 THEWITNESS: | don't understand the question.
25 itsdf. Calsfor alegd conclusion. 25 | think it's vague and general.
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1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Wegot aletter from the State 1 1986 when | knew something about multi-track year-around
2 that said you have some substantive working knowledge. 2 funding and how it relates to class size reduction, et
3 MR. VIRJEE: You didn't get the letter from the 3 cetera, et cetera, but in the same context for aLos
4 State. Let'sbeclear, please. 4  Angeles schoal district. But no other independent
5 THE WITNESS: What's that? 5 research, if that'swhat you're getting at.
6 MR. JACOBS: I'm sorry, we got it from the 6 MR. JACOBS: | think that'swhat I'm getting
7 sate of Cdifornia, Department of Justice. | think 7 a.
8 that'sthe state. 8 Q. Oneoftheissuesinthe caseiswhether
9 MR. VIRJEE: If that's the way you meant "the 9 multi-track year-around schooling, particularly of the
10 date" then we can use that definition from now on 10 Concept 6 variety, the extent to which that mechanism
11 then. Whenever you use the word "state," you mean the 11 deprives students of educational opportunity.
12 Attorney Genera'soffice. I'mjust seeking to clarify 12 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou don't have to assumethat's an
13 things. 13 issueinthecase. AndI'll object asto vague and
14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wereceived aletter actually 14 ambiguous asto "deprives' and "educationa
15 from Anthony V. Seferian, deputy attorney general, who 15 opportunity.”
16 dated that you have some substantive working knowledge 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any basis for
17 regarding multi-tracking issues. 17 opining one way or the other on the degree to which
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Counsd, I'll represent that was 18 concept 6 multi-tracking affects educationa
19 aletter that | sent and that was based on the 19 opportunities?
20 information we have, but | don't think it'sfair for you 20 A. No.
21 to question the witness based on a letter that | sent, 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 and any delving into that would obvioudly go into 22 to"affects' and "multi-tracking,”" "opportunities.”
23 attorney/client communication. 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible legd
24 MR. JACOBS: Mr. Seferian, that's absurd. 24 opinion.
25 Q. Letmeaskyou, sir, doyou have any other 25 (The deposition concluded at 6:04 p.m.)
Page 227 Page 229
1 substantive working knowledge regarding multi-tracking 1 Please be advised that | have read the foregoing
2 issues other than that which you've testified to so far? 2 deposition. | hereby state there are:
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as i (check ong NO CORRECTIONS
4 to "substantive working knowledge."
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Calls for an inadmissible legal > CORRECTIONSATTACHED
6 opinion. 7
7 THE WITNESS: What does that mean, "substantive Date Signed
8 working knowledge'? 8
9 MR. JACOBS: Maybe Mr. Seferian should tell us 9
10 because hewroteit. JOHN MOCKLER
11 MR. VIRJEE: Mr. Seferianis not answering 10
12 questions here. CaeTitle: N Williams vs State, Volume |
13 THE WITNESS: Whet doesit mean? Doesitmean | 11 Daeof Deposition: Wednestiay, January 23, 2002
14 havel ever gpproached the problem for a different 13/
15 client or adifferent way or at a different time? 14
16 MR. JACOBS: | think, actualy, that's what | 15
17 was getting a with assignments. 16
18 MR. VIRJEE: | think he answered the question. 17
19 MR. JACOBS: So, yes, let's take that meaning 18
20 of the question. 19
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 20
22 He now wants you to answer your own question, %
23 John. That'swhat you get when you ask questions of 3
24 yourself. 24
25 THEWITNESS: There were times subsequent to o5
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DEPONENT'S CHANGES OR CORRECTIONS
Note: If you are adding to your testimony, print the
exact words you want to add. If you are deleting from
your testimony, print the exact words you want to
delete. Specify with"Add" or "Delete" and sign this
form.
DEPOSITION OF:  JOHN MOCKLER, VOLUME |
CASE: WILLIAMSVS STATE
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

| certify that the witness in the foregoing

deposition,
JOHN MOCKLER,

was by me duly sworn to testify the truth, the whole
truth, in the within-entitled cause; that said
deposition was taken at the time and place therein
named; that the testimony of said witness was reported
by me, aduly certified shorthand reporter and a
disinterested person, and was thereafter transcribed
into typewriting.

| further certify that | am not of counsel or
attorney for either or any of the partiesto said cause,
nor in any way interested in the outcome of the cause
named in said deposition.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand
this 4th day of February, 2002.

TRACY LEE MOORELAND, CSR 10397
State of Cdifornia

59 (Pages 230 to 231)



